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The Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative (CABRI) works with
African finance and budget ministries in developing and implementing
reforms that lead to more functional public financial management
systems. We facilitate peer learning and exchange and utilise problem-
driven and iterative approaches to solving context-specific challenges.
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Foreword

The...approach has made it possible for me to showcase the expertise and skills that
| possess, [and] which | use to the advantage of my country. Henceforth | will feel
proud each time that | see any administrative infrastructure that has been rebuilt or
rehabilitated using state resources.

Thierry Lobaka, Directorate-General for Budget, Central African Republic

CABRI is at the coalface of efforts to improve the capabilities of countries to manage public finance resources.

Over the 2018/19 reporting period (1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019) CABRI has built on more than a decade-
long commitment to provide member and participating countries with a platform for exchanging experiences
and learning, in an environment of respect, appropriateness, openness and ownership. We have built, and
continue to build, a uniqgue community of peers striving together to discover what works (when and how),
and together we are supporting the establishment of functional public financial management (PFM) across
the African continent.

CABRI provides qualitative interventions that take the form of:

Country teams tackling real PFEM problems in their respective countries

Peer-exchange and learning opportunities that focus on critical policy and implementation
challenges

Leading knowledge products on budgets, budget processes and procedures, and public debt
management in Africa.

The reporting period of the Annual Report covers the first year of our three-year (2018/19 to 2020/21) strategic
plan, a plan that increasingly places the emphasis on building the capabilities of finance ministry officials while
improving the functionality of PFM systems. The strategic plan applies a theory of change that is based on the
belief that it is the practitioners on the ground — the officials actually responsible for PFM in their countries
— who are best placed to identify context specific challenges, and to develop and implement functional
approaches to address them. Our theory of change, thus, places the practitioner at the front, centre and
back of all that we do. At the core of the approach is a problem-driven, iterative and adaptive (PDIA) mindset
that is captured by Thierry Lobaka, a participant in our 2018 Building PFM Capabilities programme. Despite
having a ‘best-practice’ procurement law in the Central African Republic (CAR), the country was spending
only around 3 percent of an already small investment budget. Understanding the real problem and its causes
and sub-causes gave a team of officials a much better chance of making progress and solving the problem of
underspending, with the support of a CABRI coach.

The suitability of our approach to solving real PFM problems in African countries is further emphasised by
Anta Taal from The Gambia.

With the support of CABRI coaches, our team was guided to adopt home-grown
solutions to address real problems affecting our country’s PFM. This has been a
unique experience, enriching and engaging us as public servants.

Anta Taal, Directorate of Public Private Partnership, The Gambia

Thierry and Anta were two of the 491 participants in various CABRI engagements that covered 34 African
countries over the reporting period.

CABRI’s work moving forward will continue to focus on strengthening the capabilities of government officials
through programmes that apply innovative approaches to address the real PFM problems.

]

i

Neil Cole
Executive Secretary
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2018/19
WORKPLAN

CABRI set an ambitious workplan for the
reporting period. In addition to our Building
Public Finance Management Capabilities
(BPFMC) programme, we expanded and
enhanced the coverage of our Policy
Dialogues and knowledge products. It was
also an ambitious workplan for a small
secretariat staff and a limited budget.



The workplan for 2018/19 is summarised in Table 1.

TABLE 1: 2018/19 workplan

PROGRAMME OUTPUT PLANNED

Building PFM ...in Africa 6 country teams participated in 8-month programme using
Capabilities the PDIA approach to make progress in solving their locally
nominated PFM problem
...in The Gambia 2 teams from The Gambia participated in 8-month
programme using the PDIA approach to make progress in
solving their locally nominated PFM problem
...in South Africa 3 teams from SA participated in 8-month programme using
the PDIA approach to make progress in solving their locally
nominated PFM problem
Benin-Guinea Peer-exchange and learning programme for two countries
Partnership for Greater to support each other in the design and implementation of
Transparency transparency plans’
Policy Water, Sanitation and 2 peer-exchange and learning events on policy and funding
Dialogues Hygiene (WASH) strategies to improve WASH service delivery
Appropriation and Peer-exchange and learning event on implementation
Diffusion of Programme- of PBB in West African Economic and Monetary Union
Based Budgeting (PBB) (WAEMU) member countries
Cash-management Train cash managers in use of the forecasting tool
Forecast Training employed by the South African National Treasury
Strategies to Increase Peer-exchange and learning event for public debt
the Investor Base managers, central banks and investors
Role of Legislatures in Peer-exchange and learning for budget managers,
the Budget Process parliamentary staff and members of legislatures
Role of Governments Peer-exchange and learning for budget/finance and
and Budgets in agriculture managers
Promoting Value Chains
in Agriculture
Knowledge Budgets in Africa Quarterly updating of our central depository of publicly available
Generation budget documents

Africa Debt Monitor

Launch the Africa Debt Monitor

Leaderships Stories

Stories of 4 budget managers’ contributions to reform in their
countries

Public Health Budget
Practices and Procedures

Publish the finding of survey on budget practices and procedures
in health

Social Media

Grow our social media presence
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DEVELOPMENT
PARTNERS

Several development partners contributed to the work of
CABRI over the reporting period. Table 2 provides a description
of the type of support and the length of the partnerships.
Having a nominal country membership fee, the support from
our development partners contributed significantly to our
ability to deliver our programmes. Support from development
partners has also enabled non-member countries to benefit
from their participation in CABRI programmes.



TABLE 2: Development partners

PARTNER 2018/19 CURRENT PARTNER
CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT SINCE
(USS) ENDS
African Project finance 1676 339 March 2020 2016
Development
Bank
Gates Budget support 1234087 October 2020 2012
Foundation
Giz Finance 85 166 December 2006
(BMZ/EU) agreements 2019
GIZ (BMZ/EU) In-kind
Hewlett Budget support 20000 July 2021 2012
Foundation
National Budget support 89 399 2004
Treasury (RSA)
SECO Budget support 587 934 March 2019 2015

We hope to continue our existing partnerships and establish new ones as we expand our work with
finance, budget and planning ministries and a select number of line-ministries. These partnerships will
be critical in our ability to build an African institution that leads in efforts to ensure that public financial
resources are managed with integrity, transparency and accountability, which, ultimately, contributes to

efficient and effective service delivery, sustainable economic growth and development.
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MONITORING
AND REVIEW

CABRI has a comprehensive monitoring system that has
been adapted to its programme outputs and approach.
The system involves the collection of responses from
participants to determine: (i) relevance of subject matter
and materials to their context, (ii) acquisition of new
knowledge, and (iii) applicability of new knowledge

and how it can be used to improve policy design and
implementation. Both qualitative and quantitative
measures are used. This is the main monitoring
mechanism of our Policy Dialogues.



The monitoring mechanism of the BPFMC programme uses both qualitative and quantitative data that
country teams and CABRI coaches capture on the Canvas online platform. We track the progress that the
teams are making in solving their locally nominated PFM problems. In addition, participating officials are
encouraged to contribute blogs that capture the impact of the programme.

The CABRI Secretariat undertakes quarterly reviews and reports. The reports are submitted to our
management committee, general assembly and development partners. In addition, annual reports are
prepared in accordance with the requirements of our development partners.

In 2017, CABRI also undertook an independent evaluation of the 2015/16 to 2017/18 strategic
plan. Based on feedback obtained by the independent evaluators (www.khulisa.com), over 70
percent of respondents from both member and non-member countries confirmed that:

e CABRI activities were highly relevant to their priorities, needs and context
Participation in a CABRI event had strengthened their capabilities in PFM

CABRI is a highly effective way for actors at the country and regional level to build
commitment towards better PFM

New skills were acquired as a result of participating in CABRI

CABRI is an effective way for actors at the regional level to learn from each other as peers.

Importantly, the survey also provided insights into areas of improvement, based on the findings
that only 50 to 60 percent of respondents felt that CABRI:

* Has been effective in building country capacity to manage public resources

* |Interventions had built relationships between budget and other officials in finance, budget
and line-ministries (to a medium to high degree).

The evaluation provided critical insights that informed our new medium-term plan. It confirmed that
which we do well and how it has led to success and guided the strengthening of those areas of work that
should remain central to our mission, such as peer-learning and exchange.

An independent evaluation for the period 2018/19 to 2020/21 will commence in 2020.
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PROGRAMME
OUTPUTS AND
ACHIEVEMENTS

* BUILDING PFM CAPAPBILITIES
* POLICY DIALOGES

e KNOWLEDGE GENERATION



BUILDING PFM CAPABILITIES (BPFMC)

The BPFMC programme makes use of the PDIA approach and provides extensive opportunities for
peer-learning and exchange. Over the reporting period, the programme was comprised of four sub-
components: (i) the BPFMCin Africa programme, which brought together six teams from the same number
of countries, (ii) the BPFMC in The Gambia programme, which was comprised of two teams from that
country, (i) three teams from South Africa, which started the BPFMC programme in the fourth quarter of
the reporting period, and (iv) a partnership that involved teams from Guinea and Benin supporting each
other to improve budget transparency.

The various outputs of each of the components of the BPFMC programme are set out in Table 3.

TABLE 3: Outputs of the BPFMC programme

OUTPUT LOCATION PARTICIPATING COUNTRIES OFFICIALS

FIRST QUARTER: 1 April — 30 June 2018

Building PFM Capabilities Pretoria Central African Republic, Cote 48 (comprising of 6 teams)
in Africa: Framing d’lvoire, Ghana, Lesotho, Liberia
Workshop and Nigeria
Building PFM Capabilities Banjul The Gambia 12 (comprising of 2 teams)
in The Gambia: Framing
Workshop
Partnership for Budget Cotonou Benin and Guinea-Conakry 18 (comprising of 2 teams)
Transparency: Framing
Workshop

SECOND QUARTER: 1 July — 30 September 2018

Building PFM Capabilities Central African Republic, Cote 48 (comprising of 7 teams),
in Africa: Country Visits d’lvoire, Gambia, Ghana, Liberia, as well as country peers
Lesotho, and Nigeria from line-ministries in each
country
Building PFM Capabilities Banjul The Gambia 12 (comprising of 2 teams)
in The Gambia: Country as well as peers from line-
Visit ministries in The Gambia
Partnership for Budget Cotonou Benin 60 civil society
Transparency: Co-host representatives and
budget training for 20 officials
CSOs

THIRD QUARTER: 1 October — 31 December 2018

Building PFM Capabilities: Dakar Central African Republic, Cote 51 (comprising of 9 teams)
Peer Review Seminar d’lvoire, Gambia, Ghana, Lesotho,
Liberia and Nigeria

FOURTH QUARTER: 1 January — 31 March 2019

Building PFM Capabilities Johannesburg South Africa 18 (comprising 3 teams)
in South Africa: Framing
Workshop
Partnership for Budget Conakry Guinea Conakry 41 civil society
Transparency: CSO representatives and
Training in Guinea officials
Building PFM Capabilities Abuja Federal government and 5 states 102 officials from
in Africa: Nigeria VAM in covering the 6 geographical regions the federal and state
Health of Nigeria government and

development partners
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Building PFM Capabilities in Africa

We launched our second BPFMC programme in 2018 with six teams. The four Anglophone teams were
from countries that were part of the programme in 2017, which can be attributed to the value that
the previous teams had gained. The new teams from these countries nominated different problem
statements.

Two francophone teams joined the programme in 2018, following the translation of the online course
and materials into French and the designation of French-speaking coaches to the two teams.

This programme provides a continuous and structured engagement for country teams, whereby
they are exposed to various tools that they can use to solve complex problems. The programme
entailed the following:

a. Six teams submitted an application describing their local problems (see Table 4) and the
names of the team members and their authoriser, who in most cases was the Minister of
Finance/Budget or Director-General/Permanent Secretary.

b. All six teams enrolled in an online PDIA course that supported the team and individual
members in understanding the concepts and construction of their problem. The online
facility was used throughout the programme for: (i) team assignments, (ii) progress reports,
(iii) ‘coach’ reflections and ‘check-in” reports, and (iv) grading.

c. Following the three-week online course, the country teams convened to improve the
framing of their problems and to deconstruct their main causes. A vital part of the framing
workshop in Pretoria was for teams to also identify what ‘problem-solved” would look
like. Ideas for action were identified and timeframes agreed with the coaches assigned to
each team. The framing workshop also provided an opportunity for the teams to exchange
experiences and learn from their peers.

d. With the support of their coaches, the teams started implementing the first of their actions
almost as soon as they got back to their respective countries. Coaches undertook bi-
weekly telephonic check-ins with their teams to establish and probe: (i) progress made, (ii)
challenges and lessons, and (iii) next steps.

e. At least two country visits were undertaken by the coaches. These visits involved: (i) a more
in-depth examination of the problem and progress made, (ii) meetings with the authoriser,
relevant ministries, departments and agencies (MDAs) and parliamentary committees, and
(iii) agreement on next steps. During these visits, the coaches encouraged teams to use
the PDIA tool and newly acquired capabilities to tackle different problems and also share
experiences of the programme with their peers.

f. The country teams were convened at the end of the programme in Dakar to report on
progress made and to identify further support needed from the coaches.

Claude-Frangois N'Goumissa Directorate of Budget Reform and Modernisation of Public Management, Céte d’Ivoire
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The progress that teams have made and their ongoing work can be followed on the CABRI PFM Knowledge
Hub, and is summarised in Annex A.

Building on the success of our 2017 and 2018 teams, the 2019 BPFMC in Africa programme applications
for the third cohort of countries were received by the CABRI Secretariat in the fourth quarter of 2018/19.
Participating countries will be Benin, Central African Republic, Ethiopia, Ghana, Guinea, Maliand Rwanda.
Problem statements of these teams relate to: domestic resource mobilisation, linkages between plans,
budgets and service delivery, and implementation of investment projects.

TABLE 4: Local problem statements

Ghana Overspending by MDAs leading to budget overruns, which impede
service delivery

Cote d’Ivoire Budgets allocated to MDAs are not contributing to expected results

Liberia Limited allocation of funds for public sector investments and
underutilisation of allocated funds

Central African Republic Deviation between planned and actual capital expenditure
Lesotho Ministry of Finance does not know how much or when MDAs require
cash
Nigeria Inadequate funding of health sector resulting in poor primary

health care outcomes

Building PFM Capabilities in The Gambia

Two teams from The Gambia participated in a separate programme that followed the same activities
described above (a to f). The two problem statements of The Gambia teams are shown in Table 5.

TABLE 5: Locally nominated problems from The Gambia

Gambia (1) Weak oversight of state-owned enterprises (SOEs), increasing the risk
of contingent liabilities that limit fiscal space

Gambia (2) High debt service cost crowding out other priority spending

These problems had been around for a long time, despite the introduction of several ‘best practice’
reforms that had been supported by bilateral and multilateral agencies. The problems are complex and
will take a tremendous effort from the teams to solve. The BPFMC programme provided the teams with
the necessary tools to identify the causes of the problems and strategies that can be applied in order
to make progress in finding a solution. Importantly, the teams, their peers and authorisers are acutely
aware that the ownership of the problems and ability to solve them are within their grasp.

The progress that the two teams have made and next steps are summarised in Annexure A.
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Building PFM Capabilities in South Africa

In the third quarter of 2018/19, three teams from the National Treasury started working on a single,
locally nominated problem — weak compliance by public entities. They attended the problem-framing
and deconstruction workshop in the fourth quarter, and started to implement their actions in April 2019.

At the first check-in by the CABRI coaches, which all three teams attended with their authorisers, the
teams reported on the progress they had made in collecting relevant data and further deconstruction of
their problems into sub-causes.

Partnership for Budget Transparency

The partnership between Guinea and Benin provided both countries with an opportunity to share
experiences and lessons from the design and implementation of their respective budget transparency
policies and plans. Starting with a framing workshop to share policies and plans, the two country
teams agreed on a peer-review mechanism to assess progress with the implementation of their budget
transparency action plans.

The next two outputs were comprised of training programmes for civil society organisations (CSOs) on
the plans and current budget practices and procedures in Cotonou and Conakry.

CABRI and Benin (Budget Directorate) co-hosted a budget training workshop for CSOs working in Benin.
The training focused on budget formulation and also covered the policies and practices that would need
to be addressed for Benin to improve its Open Budget Index score.

CABRI and Guinea (Ministry of Budget) co-hosted a budget training workshop for CSOs working in Guinea.
The training focused on budget formulation and also covered the policies and practices that would need
to be addressed for Guinea to improve its Open Budget Index score.

Building on almost a decade of experience in peer-exchange and learning through the use of various
approaches, our Policy Dialogues are comprised of:

a. Research and development of case studies that provided critical lessons of policy implementation,
and practices and procedures that demonstrated, amongst others, allocative and technical
efficiency in the implementation of spending plans

b. A peer-exchange and learning event that was attended by officials from finance, budget and the
respective line-ministry

c. Training or country peer review that is tailored to address specific needs identified at the peer-
exchange event

d. Voluntary and demand-led twinning of countries to deepen the peer-learning and exchange
opportunities

e. Regular and timely follow-up with participants to assess the application of knowledge and skills
acquired.

The Policy Dialogues have provided an essential platform for practitioners from ministries of finance and
budget (and a select number of line-ministries) to share and learn from the experiences of their peers
and, where appropriate, to apply the lessons learnt.
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When it comes to peer learning through regional networks, CABRI has a comparative advantage in
facilitating change by bringing together practitioners with experience in similar contexts and confronting
similar PFM challenges (whether across or within countries or organisations). The voluntary nature of
the organisation has ensured that the participating budget/finance and line-ministry officials engage
openly and constructively and are committed to taking back what they have learned to their countries

The various outputs of our Policy Dialogues are shown in Table 6.

TABLE 6: Outputs of Policy Dialogues

OUTPUT LOCATION PARTICIPATING COUNTRIES OFFICIALS
FIRST QUARTER: 1 April — 30 June 2018
WASH Peer Review Workshop Cape Town Botswana, Gambia, Ghana, 21
(anglophone) Lesotho, Kenya, Mauritius,

Nigeria, South Africa

WASH Peer Review Workshop Kigali Burkina Faso, CAR, Cote d’Ivoire, 16
(francophone) DRC, Guinea-Conakry, Mali,
Rwanda
WAEMU Workshop on Abidjan Benin, Burkina Faso, Cote d’lvoire, 14
Appropriating and Diffusing Mali, Mauritania, Morocco,
Programme-Based Budgeting Seychelles, Togo, Tunisia

SECOND QUARTER: 1 July — 30 September 2018

Cash-management Forecast Pretoria The Gambia, Kenya, Lesotho, 24
Training Liberia, Malawi, Mauritius,
Namibia, Nigeria, Sierra Leone,
South Africa, Uganda, Zambia

THIRD QUARTER: 1 October — 31 December 2018

Strategies to Broaden the Nairobi Botswana, Cote d’lvoire, Kenya, 39
Investor Base Mali, Mauritius, Morocco,
Namibia, Nigeria, South Africa,
Tunisia, Uganda and Zambia

Role of the Legislature in the Nairobi Burkina Faso, DRC, The Gambia, 59
Budget Process Ghana, Guinea-Conakry, Liberia,
Malawi, Mali, Nigeria, South
Africa, Uganda and Zambia

FOURTH QUARTER: 1 January — 31 March 2019

Role of Governments and Addis Benin, Central African Republic, 19
Budgets in Developing Value Ababa Cote d’lvoire, Ethiopia, Guinea,
Chains in Agriculture Kenya, Liberia, Mauritius,

Morocco, Nigeria, South Africa
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Policy Dialogues on Value for Money in Public Spending

Two country reviews followed the Policy Dialogue on WASH financing that took place in Accra in
November 2017. The review with a group of anglophone countries was held in Cape Town from 6 to 8
June and provided an opportunity for officials from finance ministries and WASH MDAs to share case
studies on strategies, budgeting and implementation challenges in the WASH sector. The review also
examined more closely the response of two cities in South Africa to the 2016/17 water shortages and
sanitation challenges; in addition, it provided an opportunity for participants to visit an innovative, low-
cost water treatment and reticulation project in an informal housing settlement.

The second review took place in Kigali from 20 to 22 June with francophone government officials and
followed a format similar to that of the Cape Town gathering. Participants reviewed the key constraints
in making the case for increased funding for WASH, alongside the need to develop credible sector plans
and programmes. The Kigali workshop also provided an opportunity to share challenges and experiences
in tracking financial flows in the sector, which is highly decentralised in many countries.

The Policy Dialogue on Appropriating and Diffusing Programme-Based Budgeting in the West African
Economic and Monetary Union (WAEMU) region was held in Abidjan on 10 and 11 April 2018. The
dialogue focused on several challenges that WAEMU member countries experience when implementing
programme-based budgeting (PBB), including technical issues, such as decentralisation of expenditure
controls, pre- and co-conditions, and the neglected non-technical change-management aspects. The
dialogue also considered the local context of each of the WAEMU member countries, which were
expected to have implemented PBB by 2017 but have done so with varied and limited success.

In addition to the five WAEMU member countries that attended, four non-WAEMU countries were invited
to share case studies on the design and implementation of PBB in their countries. The participation of
Cote D’lvoire in the BPFMC programme follows on from the challenges that they identified at the Policy
Dialogue held in Abidjan.

The Policy Dialogue on the Role of Governments in Developing Agriculture Value Chains for Employment
Creation and Poverty Reduction was held in Addis Ababa on 26 and 27 March. It brought together
officials from 11 anglophone and francophone countries working in the ministries of finance, budget,
national planning and agriculture. Through the use of case studies and facilitated discussions, the
dialogue addressed the key policy and institutional challenges faced by governments when adopting a
value-chain approach.

Faced with limited resources and capacity, the state has to strategically select sustainable interventions
that will have the largest impact in the chain. A government’s ability to select and successfully implement
policies is central in this regard. Emphasis has been placed on building lasting, beneficial relationships
with the private sector and development partners as a way of leveraging limited resources.

Some of the main areas of intervention identified at the dialogue include providing support to: (i)
smallholder farmers in overcoming the challenges posed by fragmented production, and (ii) to processors
to increase investment in domestic processing and value addition.

Governments, in addition, face PFM challenges associated with adopting a value-chain approach such
as multi-sector budgeting. A review based on the capacity and knowledge gaps identified during the
dialogue took place in July 2019.
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Policy Dialogues on Budget Transparency for Greater Accountability
and Participation

The Policy Dialogue on the Role of the Legislature in the Budget Process was attended by senior budget
managers from finance/budget ministries and legislatures, and public representatives from public
accounts committees and budget and finance committees. The dialogue was opened by the Cabinet
Secretary for the Kenyan Treasury, Mr Henry Rotich. Over the two-day event, presentations and
facilitation of group work was undertaken by participants and CABRI staff. Case studies of Burkina Faso,
Kenya and Nigeria were used to facilitate the sessions on the preparation of budgets under different
legislative systems.

Some of the key takeaways from the dialogue are that:

* An earlier engagement by legislatures in the budget process improves budget hearings
and can contribute to budgets being approved within the stipulated timeframe. Earlier
engagement also limits the ‘parachuting’ of infrastructure projects that have not been
adequately conceptualised and appraised into the executive’s budget.

* There is less tension between the executive and legislature under a parliamentary system, as
opposed to a presidential system, but this does not mean that the one is more effective than
the other.

* Functioning budget offices in Parliament play an important role in helping the various
legislative committees to understand the fiscal framework and budget allocations, and
improve their oversight role. Several participants who work for parliamentary budget offices
(PBOs) urged CABRI to assist in helping PBOs to become more functional.

Two events are planned as follow-ups to the Policy Dialogue. The first is a training event to be held in Mali
on improving the functionality of PBOs. The second event is a partnership between Liberia and Nigeria
to exchange their experiences of how to enhance the role of the legislature in the budget process within
a presidential system.
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Policy Dialogues on Sustainable Public Debt Management

Following the Policy Dialogue in Accra on Improving the Co-ordination between Cash and Debt
Management, and in response to a request from participants for training in cash-flow forecasting, CABRI
provided training for 11 countries on the forecasting tool that is used by the South African National
Treasury.

The Policy Dialogue on Strategies to Broaden the Investor Base was attended by officials from public debt
offices, central banks, stock exchanges and other market participants. Building a sound local investor
base for government securities is one of the key building blocks when developing local debt currency
markets. Over the two-day event, panel discussions, presentations and facilitation of group work was
undertaken by participants and CABRI staff. Case studies of Céte D’lvoire, Kenya, Morocco and South
Africa were used to facilitate the different sessions.

Some of the key takeaways from the dialogue are that:

* Primary dealers can do more than trade government bonds, they can also serve an
important advisory role and educate other market players

* |t is critical for countries to understand who their potential investors are and what tools they
use to obtain information or data

* A mix of foreign and domestic investors is key for stability, as their investment decisions
typically do not move in the same direction at the same time

* Introducing different financial instruments allows governments to target the different
sources of savings available in a country.

A follow-up training course on Strengthening Primary-Dealer Systems was held in Morocco in April 2019.

Budgets in Africa

Budget documents from the Budgets in Africa database were downloaded 9 571 times during the
reporting period, which represents a nearly 38 percent year-on-year increase.

PFM Knowledge Hub
The CABRI PFM Knowledge Hub (www.cabri-sbo.org) registered 58 493 users during the reporting

period, which is a 197 percent increase compared to the previous period. Documents available on the
hub were downloaded 16 770 times, representing a 62 percent year-on-year increase.

Leadership Stories
Leadership stories of former and serving senior finance officials from Benin, Liberia, Malawi and South
Africa were finalised in the first quarter and have been published on the CABRI PFM Knowledge Hub

as 15-minute videos. These stories illustrate the leadership role of each of the officials in specific PFM
reforms, as outlined in Table 7.

TABLE 7: Leadership Stories
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http://www.cabri-sbo.org

Benin Improving budget transparency

Liberia Travel policy reform leading to a reduction of 35 percent in related
costs
Malawi Design and implementation of programme-based budgeting
South Africa Introducing medium-term budgeting in the post-1994 period

Africa Debt Monitor

Following the completion of the Africa Debt Monitor survey by 20 countries, a validation (of the data)
workshop was held in Mauritius in November. Data validation of the five countries that did not attend the
Mauritius workshop will be undertaken separately with each of the countries. The Africa Debt Monitor
was launched in September 2019.

Public Health Budget Practices and Procedures

Delays in contracting of service providers resulted in the roll-over of this project into the 2019/20
financial year. Following the completion of the survey, the report on Public Health Budget Practices and
Procedures in Africa will be completed in 2020.

Publications

Social Media

TABLE 8: Social media audience and reach

Facebook Number of page likes: 104 879 ; Total reach (page): 12 765 877
Twitter Number of followers: 4 730 ; Total Tweet impressions: 2 318 900
LinkedIn Number of followers: 884 ; Total impressions: 267 180

2018-2019



NETWORK
GOVERNANCE

* MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND GENERAL ASSEMBLY
* FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND AUDIT

e HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT



MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND
GENERAL ASSEMBLY

Our two-yearly Management Committee (MC) and annual General Assembly (GA) meetings were
held in Pretoria on 8 and 9 May 2018, respectively. In addition to the consideration and approval of
the annual workplan and budget for 2018/19, audited financial report for 2016/17, new policies and
staff appointments, the GA also elected a new MC that is comprised of Burkina Faso, Cote d’lvoire
(chairperson), Guinea-Conakry, Nigeria and South Africa.

The MC met on 26 November 2018 in Nairobi to approve the 2017/18 audit report and annual financial
statements, to renew the contract of the Executive Secretary for a three-year term (1 April 2019—
31 March 2022) and to ratify the appointments of new CABRI staff.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND AUDIT

Morar Incorporated (https://morar.co.za) was appointed by the MC for the 2017/18 International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) audit. An Unqualified Audit Report and the Annual Financial
Statements were presented to the MC at its meeting in November 2018.

The 2018/19 IFRS audit will commence in July 2019. The audit report for the reporting period was
presented to the MC at its meeting in November 2019.

The unaudited financial statement for the period 2018/19 is attached as Annexure 2.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

At its May 2018 meeting, the MC endorsed the appointment of Ms Awa Touray (Programme Officer)
and Ms Nthabiseng Masinge (Communications and Marketing Assistant).

Four new appointments were endorsed by the MC at its November 2018 meeting in Nairobi:

* Dr Biniam Bedasso (PFM Specialist),
* Ms Erika Venter (PA to the Executive Secretary),
* Ms Jade Naidoo (Finance and Admin Assistant), and

* Dr Shanaz Broermann (PFM Officer).

In addition, Ms Charmaine Ferreira (Finance Officer) was contracted until the end of December 2019 as
the position is supported by AfDB funding. Ms Joana Bento was promoted to Programme Manager in
November, following an interview process.



PARTNERSHIPS

Complementing our workplan for the 2018/19 financial year,
CABRI partnered with several regional and international
organisations to share our knowledge on PFM in Africa and
promote the greater involvement of practitioners. Table 9
describes our collaboration with partners across our three
result areas: (i) value for money in public spending, (ii) budget
transparency for greater participation and accountability, and
(iii) sustainable public debt management.



TABLE 9: Collaboration with partner organisations

OUTPUT

PARTNER ORGANISATION/S

CABRI ROLE

SIWI World Water Week

Water Integrity Network, GIZ, Kenya
Water and Sanitation Civil Societies
Network, Sanitation and Water for
All, BMZ

Presentation on PFM and financing
issues in WASH using materials
from our Policy Dialogue and two
Reviews on WASH

African Network of
Parliamentary Budget
Offices Conference

PBOs from Mozambique, Zimbabwe,
Tanzania, Zambia, Uganda, Kenya,
Ghana and South Africa

Presentation on the Role of Budget
and Fiscal Institutions

Training of Public Accounts
Committees

GIZ and parliamentarians

affiliated to the Southern African
Organisation of Public Accounts
Committees (South Africa, Namibia,
Mozambique, Angola, Botswana,
Lesotho, Malawi, Mauritius, Zambia)

PFM for Social Spending

International Labour Organisation:
International Training Centre

Lecture on budget formation and
implementation of spending plans

Strengthening Governance
Arrangements for the Peace
Fund

African Union

Advisory services

IFF: Country Risks Tool

ATAF, AFROSAI, AFROPAC, GIZ

Lead the pilot exercise for the
completion of the Country Risks
Tool by Morocco, Gabon and
Kenya

Training of Public Accounts
Committees

Parliament of Ghana, AFROPAC, GIZ

Lecture on PFM

2018-2019



Annexures

Annexure A: Summary of BPFMC teams’ progress and next steps

COUNTRY PROBLEM STATEMENT PROGRESS NEXT STEPS
CAR Deviations between L Introduced new Minister to approve
planneq and actual capital processes to streamline recommendations of
expenditure the procurement of MDA co-ordination
capital investments workshop
. Installed regular Install an investment
communication on spending
investment projects accountability
between MDAs and the committee
procurement office
° Targeted training to
MDA and procurement
officers
COTE Budgets allocated to L Set-up of a co- Support pilot
D’IVOIRE MDAs are not contributing ordination structure sectoral committees
to expected results between the Budget in charge of
and Public Investments investment budget
directorates allocation
o Provided targeted Ensure co-
training to MDA ordination with the
credit managers on Public Investment
project information Directorate
requirements Continue with
o Set up and pilot training for MDA
sectoral committees (5) credit managers on
for improved oversight project information
of investment projects requirements
Engage MDAs on
issues related to
virements based on
data analysis
GAMBIA Weak oversight of SOEs . Reviewed the SOE Ensure approval of
(1) increasing the risk of Act, gathered inputs the SOE Act
contingent liabilities for SOE performance Introduce SOE
measurement performance
. Designed a simplified measurement
cash-flow reporting Renew SOE board
template members
. Increased the
frequency of SOE

ANNUAL REPORT

reporting from
quarterly to monthly



COUNTRY PROBLEM STATEMENT PROGRESS NEXT STEPS
GAMBIA High debt-service cost Finalised the Improve expenditure
(2) crowding out priority memorandum of forecasts
spending understanding (clarify Ensure
the co-operation implementation
between the Ministry of the M&E
of Finance and the framework and the
Central Bank) memorandum of
Introduced an M&E understanding with
framework the Central Bank
More regular Review and update
engagement with local the Medium-Term
investors Debt Strategy
GHANA Overspending by MDAs Reduced the number of Reinforced
leading to budget last-minute requests by monitoring of cash
NI impeding service MDAs affecting budget allotments
el envelope by creating More updated
a buffer during the analysis of
allocation of budget expenditure reports
ceilings
Identified areas of
improvement during
the budget formulation
stage, which led to an
improved relationship
between the finance
ministry and spending
ministries in managing
commitments and
expenditures
LESOTHO Ministry of Finance does Liquidity Management Diffusion programme

not know how much
MDAs require or when
cash is required

Committee resuscitated
with terms of reference
Communication and co-
ordination with MDAs
improved

Database and
classification of bank
accounts developed
with 178 accounts
closed

Increase in quantity and
quality of expenditure
plan submissions by
MDAs

Introduction of monthly
reconciliation

to be rolled out in
2019

Expenditure planning
and reconciliation
guidelines to be
developed with
MDAs

Incorporation of all
bank accounts into
IFMIS

Strengthening of
PFM laws to address
gaps discovered
during BPFMC
programme

2018-2019




COUNTRY PROBLEM STATEMENT PROGRESS NEXT STEPS
LIBERIA Limited allocation of Increase in the approval o Monitor the

funds for public. sector of procurement plans performance of

Investment |:?r.01ef:ts and in the completion budget committees

and underutilisation of )

allocated funds of public sector L Conduct targeted
investment projects procurement
Dedicated help training
desk for PSIP ®  Support further
implementing SEs at accountability of
the Public Procurement investment budget
Concessions execution
Commission . Set up regular
24-hour turnaround engagements with
time for procurement Liberia Revenue
requests Authority
Greater awareness of
causes of procurement
non-compliance and
delays

NIGERIA Inadequate funding of Adopted an aid ] Support of
health sector resulting in transition plan procurement

poor primary health care
outcomes

supported by an inter-
ministerial technical
working group
Facilitated an increased
allocation to the health
sector budget for 2019
by 8%

Greater co-operation
between Ministry of
Budget and National
Planning, Health, and
National Primary Health
Care Development
Agency

Improvement in data
collection

Value for Money
workshop to share
findings of work
undertaken by team

processes and
implementation

of the Financial
Accountability
Framework for the
donor Transition Plan
Identify alternative
funding sources
Research reasons
for large difference
in immunisation
coverage

ANNUAL REPORT



Annexure B: Audited financial statements
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Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
Annual Financial 5Staterments for the year anged 31 March 2018

General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile South Afnca

Mature of business and principal activities Tha Collaboratree Africa Budget Retonm Inthative IS an
intargevarnmental organisaticn the grovides a platform Sor P
leaming and exchange for Affican ministies of Brance and planting.

Mambar countries Burkina Fasa
Cantral Afrcan Republic
Kingdom of Lesatha
Republic of Cite d'lvaira
Ragublic of Ghana
Republic of Kenya
Republic of Libaria
Republic of Mak
Republic of Mauritus
Ragublic of Remanda
Ragublic of Sanagal
Rapublic of South Africa
Republic of The Gambia
Republic of Guinea
Federal Republic of Mgeria
Rapubliz of Banin

Management Committoa mombars Rapublic of Céie g - Chairparson
Fadaral Republic of Mgera
Burkina Faso
Republic of South Affeea
Rapublic of Guirea
Mr NG Cola - Ex-olfics miembear

Business address Sauthdownz Ridge Office Park
G of John Vorster & Melimapius Driva
Ceniunon
South Alrica
0oG2

Postal address Southdowns Ridge Office Park
Cnr of John Verstar & Mellmapius Drive
Cantuion
Soulh Alnica
ooe2

Auditor Mosar Incorperabed
Chnarered Accountanis [S.A)
Registened Awnditor
Lavel of assurance Theasa annual financial statements have bean audied in complanca

with the applicable requirements of the Agreement Establishing the
Collaborative Afnca Budget Reform Initiathe.




Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
Asnual Financial Staternents for the yaar ended 31 March 2018

General Information

Proparar The annual inancal atalements were imtamally compiled by:
Mz R. Subramonay
Financial Manager

lssued 19 Augus: 2018




Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
Annual Financial Statarneris for the year ended 31 March 2018

Contents
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Management Committes's Responsibifties and Approval 4
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Statemant of Financial Posiion 24
Statement of Profil or Loss apd Other Comprahansive Income 25
Statesnent of Changes in Equity ]
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Accounting Polcies 28-32
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Tha following supplemantary information does not form par of the annuia fnancial staterments and i undudied,
Dataded Incoma Statement 44




Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
Annual Financial Statements for the year enced 31 Mareh 2019

Management Committee's Responsibilities and Approval

Thee mmermbers of the manageme commithes are requined in tarms of the Agreament Establishing the Gollab-bratve Africa
Budget Rafzemn Inifiative to maintain adequate accounting records and ame nesponsibla for the content and intagnty of tha
annual financial staternents and redated financial information included in this regort. It is their responsEdity o enswme that the
annual finenclal stetements fally presant the slate of efeis of the crganisation as al the end of the financial year and the
rasults of its operations and cash flows for the panod then ended, in confarmity with Intemabenal Finandial Reparting
Standards. The exdernal auditors ame engaged bo axpress an mdependent opinian on the annual inancial stalements.

Thia anmual financial statemants ane pragared in accordance with International Financial Reporing Standards and ane based
upon agprophate accounting policies consistently applied and supponed by reasonasie and pruden) judgemeants and
aEETalEs,

The mermbers of the management commiies scknowiedge that they are ultrmately responsible for the system of internal
financial confrol established by the arpanisalion and place considerasle imporance on maintaning a sbreng contral
emdronment. Ta anable the mambears of the managament commities 1o maat thasa responsinilites, the commites sats
standangs for intemal contred aimed at reducing the sk of amor o loss i a cast effective manner. The standards include tha
proger delegation of respanaibilities within a cleady defined framework, affactve accounting proceduras and adequate
sagregaton of dutses to ensure an acceplatde level of sk, Thesa controls are monitored throughout the onganisation and al
amployeas are required to maintain the highest athical standards in enswing the organisalion’s business i conducted in a
mannar that in all reéasonabée circumstancas is abova reproach. The fecus of itk managemant i the organisation is an
identifying, assassing, managing and menitanng all Known forms of risk across the crgamsation, Whills opacating sk cannod be
fully efiminatad, the organisation endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, contrals, sysiems and
eihizal behavicwr are applied and managed within predetermingd procedures and consirainis.

The mambers of the management commilies are of the opnion, based on iha nfarmalion and explanalions gven by
management, Fual the system of internal control provides reasonable asswrance that the Enanclal reconds may be relied on for

the pregaration of the annual financial statements, However, any system of inemal financial control can provide only
reasonable, and not abeolule, assurance aganst matenal mestslamant or losa.

The members of the management commiliea have reviewed the crganisation's cash flow foracast for the year 1o 31 March,
2020 and, in kght of this review and the cunmant financial peaition, thay are satisfiad thal the crganisaticn has or had access ta
adequate resources to continue in cparational existence for the foreseeable future.

The extamal auditors are respansible far independanty awditing and repoming on the organisation’s annual financial
statemants. The annual financeal statermants have been axamingd by the arganisalion's exdemal auditors and thaer rgart is
presenied on pagas 21 fo 22

The annual financial statements sel out on pages 24 ta 44, which have been prepared on the gaing concem basis, wera
approved by the board on 294 17§ S01%nd ware signed on their bahatl by

&f% - r PP TE

Chairpersan




Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
Annual Financial Stataments for the year ended 31 March 2018

Management Committee's Report

The members of the management commities have pleasura @ submitling their repot on the annual Snancial statemants of
Colabarative Africa Bodget Relarm Initiative for the year anded 31 March 2018,

1. Review of financial results and activites

The snnual firancial statemants have bean praparad in acoordancd with Intemnational Financial Reporting Stancards and tha
requirements of the Agreerment Estabilishing the Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative. The accounting policies have
bean applied consistantly compared o tha priar year,

Full gatails of the inancial posilion, resulls of operafons and cash flows of the crganisation are set aut in thesa annual
financial statements,

2. Executive summary

Executive overview

The PDIA approach has made i passible for me lo showease the experlize amd shils thal [ possess, [ano which | use fo the
advantage of my cowslry. Hencaforih | wil feo! prowd each Bme that | gee any aamimnisiraive infrasiruciune el has boeen rebuil
or nehabifated wsing sfote resources,

Thaarry Lobaka, Drectorate-General for Budgat, Gantral African Republic
CAEBRI is at the coalfaca of affors to improve the capabiiities of counings fo manage public fance resounges,

Cwar the 2018/18 reporting pened, 1 Apnl 2018 to 31 March 2019, CABRI built on mone than & dacade of commibment b
providing member and participating couririas with & platform for the exchangs of exparences and lkeaming, in an emvironment
of respect, appropialeness, openness and ownership. Ve canbinue 1o build a umigue commaunity of pears striving to discover
what works (when and how) and, tagether, wé uppon the establishment of functienal PFM across the African continent

CAERI provides gualitaliwe interventions thal take the farm of:

country teams tackhng real PFM problems in their respactive countries,

pear-auchenge and leaming oppartunities that focus on criical polcy and implemantation challangas, and

lmading kinswedas prodects on busgets, budget processes and praceduras, and public debt managamant in Afnica,

Tne reporting period of the annual report covers tha first year of owr throe-year (201819 10 2020021) strarlegic plan - & plan that
increasingly places the emphasis en bullding the capabilities of finance minisbry officials, while improving he funclionality of
PFM systams. The strategic plan applies a theory of change based on the bele! that it is the praclitioners on the ground — e
officiels actuslly responsible for PFM in their countries = who ane best pleced 1o identify conlext-specific challenges, and io
develop and implement funciional approaches o address tham, Our iheory of change, therafora, placas the pracitionsas at the
front, cantre and back of all that we do. A the core of the approach is a problem-diven, iterative and adaptwve (PDRA) mirdset
that is capluned abowva By Thismy Lobaka, a panicipant in our 2018 Building PFM Capabilities {BPFMC) programma. Despite
having a best-practios’ procunérment kaw, the Central African Republic was spending only arourd 3 per cant of an already smiall
investment budget Undersianding the real probdem and iis causes and sub-causes gave a team of officials a much balier
chanca of making progress and sobving the probilem of undarspanding. with the support of 8 CABR| coach.

The suitabdlity of cur approach to solving real PFM problems in Alican countngs is furiher emphasised by Ania Taal from The
Garbia.

With the support of CABR! coachas, dur tidvt was guided o 0o homo-grown Solitians fo address res protiams aifeciing
our country’s PEM. This has been 8 wague oxpesencs, aanching and engegig U8 88 pubis senanfs.

Anta Taal, Direciorate of Publc Privabe Partnerahip, The Gambdia

Thierry and Anta weare two of the 491 paricipants in variows CABR| engagements that mvedved 34 African countigs aver the
repartng penod.




Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
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Management Committee's Report

201818 workplan

CABRI s2t an ambitious workplan for the reporting period. In addition to our BPFMC programme, we expanded
and enhanced the coverage of our policy dialogues and knowledge products. It was alse an ambitious workplan for

a small secretariat stafl and a lmited budget,

The warkplan for 2018719 is summarised in Table 1.

Table 1: 200818 workplan

FProgranume voipud
BFFML oin Afric
BPFMC wooitl Gambia
BEPFML «o 0l South
Africa
BPFMC Benin-Guinea
Parnership for Greater
Transparency
Puolicy Water. sanitation and

dialegues hygizne (WASH)

Paliey Appropriation and

dialopues diffusion of
programme-based
budgeting

Palicy Cash management

dialogues forecast training

Palicy Strategies to increase
dialogues the invesior base

Palicy Rale of legislatures in
dialogue the budget process

Planned

& country teams panticipate in B-month
programme using the PDIA approach 1o
make pragress in solving their locally
nominated PFM problem

2 teams from The Gambia participate in
B-mionth programme using the PDLA
approach 10 make progress in solving
their locally nominated PFM problem

3 teams from RSA paricipate in 8-month
[programmse ||si|13 the FDIA l|111-ml¢|'| B
make pragress in solving their bocally
nominatad PFM problem

Peer-exchange and learning programme
bor two coundries 1o support ¢ach clher in
the design and implementation of
fransparency plans

2 peer-exchange and learning evends on
poliey and funding strategiss lo improve
waker, sanitation and hygiens (WASH)
service delivery

Peer-exchamge and learning event on
implementation of programme-hased
bwdgeting (PEBB) in West African
Econpmuic and Monetary Union
(WAEMUL} member countries

Training of cash managers in the
forecasting tool used by the MNational
Treasury (RSA)

Pecr-exchange and leaming event for
puhlic debt managers, cendral banks, and
invesnss

Peer-exchange and learning for budget
man&pers, parliamentary staff and
members of legislalures
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Management Committee's Report

Poliey Role of governments

dalague and badgets in
promaoting value chamns
in a.E_r.iL'vl.l|lun:'

Knowledge Budgets in Africa

generation

Knowledge Adrica Deb Monios

generation

Enowledge Leadership searies

generation

Knowledge Public health budget

generation practices and
procedures

Kaowledge Social media

generalion

Development partners

Peer-exchange and learning for
budgetfinance and agriculture managers

Cpuanterly updating of our central
depasitony of publicly available budget
documents

Launch of the Africa Debt Monnor

Stories of 4 budget managers’
coatribuions w0 reform in thelr countries

Publishing the findings of a survey on
buslget practices and procedures in health

Girowing our social media presence

Sevaral develcpmeant pariners contribudad bo tha work of CABRI owar the repcrting period. Table 2 provides a descrigtion of tha
type ol support and duration of the partnarships. In the Byht of CABRI's nominal counbry membarship fee, the support of
developrent partners contnbubed significantly 1o our ability (o deliver our programmes. Supgort from develcpmant pariners. has
alzso enablad non-member courntngs o benedit from eir panticpatan in CABRI programmes,

Table i: Development partnars

Partner

African Development  Project Francoe

Gates Foundation Budged suppodt

GIZ (BMZIEL)
GIZ (BMZ/EL)

Hewlelt Foundation  Budget Support

Mational Treasury Budget support

(RSA)
SECO

Typa J018M % contribution  Current agreamant Parther since
(US$) ends
1876, 338 March 2000 2016
1,234 087 October 2020 2012
Finance agreaments 85166 Decambar 2019 2008
In-kind
200 000 July 2021 2012
89,300 2004
Budget support SBT 604 farch 2318 2015

W' hope o cintinue with our @asting partnarships and establish rew ones a5 we expand cur work with fnance, budget and
planming ministnes and a seiect nunber of ling-ministies. These pannerships will be crtical o ow abdity 1o build an African
imstizution that leads in effafs 1o ensune thal pubbs Brancial resourcas are managed with nlegrty, rarsparensy and
accourtabilty, and thal ultimalely contribulas to efficent and efective servitoe delivery, Sustainable economis grometh and

cevelspmant.
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Monitoring and review

CASRI has a comprehans|ve menilonng system that has bean adapied to its programme oulpuls and approach. Thi Sysbin
irvalves the collection of rasponsas from participands o detemming: (i) relevance of subject mather and matesals b their

contexd, (i) acgusition of new knowledge: and (ili) applicability of ngw knowledge and how § can be used o imprave policy
design and implementaticn. Both gualitative and quanifiative measures ane ysed, This is the rmasn monilaring mechanism of our

policy dalopues.

The nwn'rtaﬁng mechansm of the BPFMG programme uses Bath quakiative and quantitabwe daia that couning 1eams and
CABRI coaches caplure on the Canvas onling plallonm, We track the progress that the teams are making in sobving thair kecally
nominated PEM problems, In addilion, paticipaling officials ane ancoursged to contribute blogs that capture the impact of tha
programime,

Tha CAER| sacratadat undedakes guarary reviews and reports, which are submitted 6 our managemant committée, ganaral
assambly and davelopment parnars. In addifion, annual reponts are preganad in accordance with 1he requiremants of o
developmant partners,

Starting in 2017, CABR| also undenook an independent evaluation for the 201516 to 2041716 siralegic plan. Basad an
feecback obtained by the independant evalupiors, Khulisa Management Sensces (wanw Khul=a com), mose than 70 par cent of
rspondens rom boalh membe and nof-mermer counlnas confimead thal

CABR| actvites warne highty relevant to their pronties, needs and conted,

pasticipation in a CABRI evant had strengthenad thelr capabilities in PFM;

CABRI i an aFactive way for actors at the country and regional level te build commitmant towards bettar PFM (ta & high
exlent);

e skills ware acquired as & resull of paricipating in CABRI, and
CABRI is an effective way for actors at the regional lenal io leam from each othar (paardearning).

Impariantly, the survay also provided insights into aneas for improvement, based on the hndings that only 50-60 per cant of
respongents el that CABRRI:

has bean effectve in buikding country capacty bo manage publis resaurces, and

nterventions hed built relationshépa batween budgat and othar officials in finance, budgel and ling-ministres (medium 1o high
axiant].

The evaluation provided critical insights that informed ou rew medium-term pln. I confirmed whal we do well and how it his
led o suctess and guided the strengthening of those areas of work that should remain ceniral 1 our MiSion, such as peer-
learning and exchange

An independent evaluation for the parod 201818 to 2020021 will commence in 2020,
Programme ocutputs and achievements
Building PFM Capabilities (BPFMC)

Tha BPFME programma makas use of the POLA aporoach and provides extansive appartunities for peerdeaming and
cxchangs. Ovar the reporting paricd, the programms was comphisad of four sub-components: (i) the BPFMC in Africa
programme, which browght together six teams from the same number of countries, (i) the BPFMEC in The Gambia prograsmme,
which was compnsed of o leams from thal country, (m) thoee teams from South Afnca, which staried a BPFMC programemi in
tha fowth quarer of the repoding pediod, and (i) a partnership that irmaalved teams from Guines and Banin Suppoiting each
athar in imgfaving budget ransparency

The vanous cutputs of each of the componants of the BFFMEC programme ane sat oul in Tabtka 3
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Tabled: Outputs of the BPFMC programme

Quartar

1%: 1 April to 30 June
2018

2%4 : 4 July ta 30
September 2018

aM: { Qetober to 31
December 2018

4% 4 January to 31
March 2019

Outpot

Buiding PFM
Capabilities in Africa
Framing warkshap

Basilding PFM
Capabiities in The
Gambila: Framing
workshop

Partnarship for Budpet
Transparensy. Framing
workehop

Building PFi
Capabiities i Africa:
Conkry visits

Building PFM
Capabiliies in Tha
Gambia. Country vids

Partnarshig for Budgat
Transpanancy: Co-host
budgat training for 20
CE0s

Biuilding PFMW
Capabilities; Faar
reviEw saminar

Biuikding PFM
Capabilites in South
Africa: Framing
wiarkshoo

Padnarship for Budget
Transparency: 50
training in Guinea

Bulding PFM
Capabilities in Africac

Nigeria Valwe for Monay

in Haalth

Building PFM Capabififies in Africa

We launiched our second Builkding PFM Capabilities prograsmma in 20118 with s tesmns. The faur Anglophane teams wene from
countries that wera par of the pregramme in 2817, which can e attibuted to the value that the previous teams had gainad.
The new teams from these countries nominated different problam stalamants

Location

Prgtedia

Banjul

Barjul

Johannestarg

Canakry

Abuja

Participating
couniries

Central Adrican
Republiz, Cite d hvaire,
Ghana, Lesstho, Libaria

and Migaria
The Gambia

Benan and Guinea-
Conakry

Cantral Akican
Rapubliz, Cie d'heome,
Gambia. Ghana,
Lisgnia, Lesetho, and
Migaria

The Gamba

Benin

Central African
Republic, Cdbe o halre,
Gamkia, Ghana,
Lasctho. Libesia and
Higaria

South Alrica

Guinea Corakry

Faderal gowarnment
and S stabes covaring
the & geographical
regiors of Migeda

Officials

48 {comprising of 6
teams)

12 {cormpirising of 2
bearms)

18 (comprsing of 2
teams)

48 (compnszing of ¥
teams), as wall as
couniry pears from ling
miniskries in ¢ach
couriry

12 [compriging of 2
1eama) as well 53 pears

Trom Eme ministias In
The Gambia

reépresantatnags and
officials

51 {comprising of 8
tBAMS]

18 {cemprising of 3
b

41 civil sociaty
represeniatves and
officiale

102 (comprising of
afficials from the Sedaral
and siale govemmant of
Migeria and

developmient partners)
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Two Francoghone teams joined the programems in 201E, lollowing (ha translation of tha online coursa and matarials into
Franch, and the designation of Franch spaakitg cobchos b ihe B beams.

This prograsmme pfovides & continueus and atructured angagamant for country teams, wherey thay are farmiliansed with
variaus tools that they can use o sohve complex problemns. The programme entailad the followirdg:

Six teams submitiad an applcation describing their iocal problams (see Tabke £) and the rames of the team membars and their
authonzes who, in most casas, was the minister of fnancefbudget or director-genaralipermangnt secratary,

Table 4: Local preblem statements

Ghana Overspanding by MOAs leading 1o budget overnuns that
impada sanace dalvary

Cote d'lvalee Budgets allocated to MDAS are not contribuling 10 dxpecied
results

Libaria Limited allocation of lurds for pubbc sector mvestments and
underutisaton of aliocated funds

Central African Republie Dewiation betwean planned and actual capital expanditune

Lasotha Ministry of inance doas rot kndw Bow much MDAS fequing oF
when cash is reguired

Migeria Inadequate lunding of health saclar resulting in poor primary
healh cane puicomes

Al gix leams anralled in an ankine PO courss that supponed the tesm and indiidual membars in undarstanding the consepts
and censtruction of thair problen. The online lacility was used throughout the programme far: (i) team assignmeants; (i)
progress reporis; (i) ‘coach’ reflections and ‘check-in® reports; and () grading.

Following the three-week onbing coursa, the country leams convened 1o improvg the framietg of their problems and the
deconstruction of its main causas. & vilal part of the framing workshap in Préteda Wwas for leams to denbfy what "problam.
solvad’ would leok like. ldeas for aclion were idenltified and tmalrames agresd upan with the coaches assigned b esch beam
The framing workshop also providied an opponundy fac the teama to exchange experiances and leam from their peers.

With the support of thair coaches, teams started rmplementing their first actions almost a5 soon 58 1hey retumead o thedr
respectve cauntnes. Coacheas undenook 8 bl-weekly ielaphonic chack-in with their teams 1o establish and prebe: (i) progress
rade; (i) chellenges and lessons; and (ill} next staps.

Al bees] two country visits ware undartaken by the ceachas. These visils invaheed: (1) & maor in-gegth examination of the
profdem and progress made; (1) meetmgs with the authamnses, relevant ministries, degartrments and agencias, and
parkamantary commitiess; and (i) agreement on nexd steps. During thess visils, the coaches encouraped teams 1o use ihe
PDIA ool and rewly acquired capabaties 1o tackle differen! preblems and alsa to share expenences of the programme with
fhgir pears.

Al the and of the pragramme, the country IBams wera convenad in Dekar o report on progress mada and to identify further
suppar meeded from their coaches.

Tha progress that teams hava made and thair cngoing work can be follcwed on the CABRI PEM Knowledge Hub, and
summarised in Annexure A

Buildng on the success of our 2017 and 2018 leams, the 2018 BPFMC in Alrica programme applications for the tird cohaort of
couniries wine reoeived by the CABRI Secrelanal in the fourth quares of 201819 Panicipating countries will be Banin, Ceniral
Afrcan Republic, Ethiopia, Ghana, Guinea, Mal and Rwanda. Protlem stalements of these teams relate to: (i) demeste

resaunce mobilisation; (i) inkages betwean plans, budgets and service delweary, and (id) implementation of investmeant projects

Building PFM Capabilities in The Gambia

Twwa teams from The Gambla participated in a separale programme that followad the same activibas descrbed in the bulleted
list abowe. The twa preblem statemeants of thesa leams are shown in Table 5.
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Table 5 Locally nominated problems from The Gambia

Gambia (1) Waak owareight of S0Es, increasing the risk of contingant
llabikties that limit fkscal space

Gambla (2) High debt servion cost crowding aut ather ooty spending
These preblems had been ansund for a long fime, despite the introdussn of sevaral ‘bast prachos” relorms thal had been
supgerted by blateral and multilateral agencass. The problems are complex and will take a tremendous effort from the teans 10
sohva, The BPFMC programime prosided the teams wilh the necessany tools to idenlify the causes of tha problams and
strategies thal can be applied in order ta make progress. imponantly, the teams, thair peers, and autharisers are acutaly awara
ihad the cwnershio of the prodlems and the abdly to 3ol them i witihin their grasp.

The progress that the twio teams have made and their next steps ane summansed in Annaxure A

Building PFM Capabilities in South Africa

Theee taams from the national reasury stased in the tird quarier of 2018019 to work on a single, localiy-nominated probiem -
waak complisnce by public entites, They altended the problem-Faming and desonstruchion workshap in the fourih quaner, and
staned by imploment their achions in Aprl 2018,

A thie frgl check-in by the CABRI coachas, which all thies tesrna attanded with their authanisars, the teams reportad an the
progress that they had made in collesting relevant data and further decanstruction of thesr problem nfo sub-casses.

Partnarship for budget fransparency

The partnership betwean Guines and Benin provided both countias with an opportunity 1o $hang expenincss and lessons fhom
the design and implamantation of their respecinng budget-transpanency policies and plans. Starng with a framing workshop o
share thasa, the two country fkams agrssd on a pads i MBchansm 1o A&ss4s progreds wilh the mmplemantaban of thair
budgat trarspamency action plans

Thia naKT two SulpUls wane comarised of training programmes for civl society organisations cn the plans and curment budget
pracices and procedures in Cotonou and Conakry.

CABRI and Benin (bucget directorate) co-hosted a budget fraiming warkshop for civil sociely organigations working in Benin,
The training focused on budgel formulation and also cowerned the poficies and practices thal would nedd 1o be addrassed Tor
Banin ks improve its Open Budige! Index sS6he.

CABRI and Guings (minigiry of budged) co-hosted a budgel fraining workshop for civil sacsaty organisations working In Guinea.
The training focused on busgel farmulation and also cowarad the poalicies and practicas that would nead 1o be addressed for
Guinga 1o mmprove 13 Opan Budget Index scora

Pelicy dialogues

Buildirg on almost a decade of exparienca in pear-exchange and kaming thraugh the whe of vanous approaches, our policy
dialoguas ware comprsed of

rasaarch and development of case studies that provided gritical lessons on pelicy implerneniation, and practices and
procedunes that demonstrated, amongst others, allacative and technical eMicency in the implementation of spending plans;

a paer exchangs and Barning evant that was stbended by o¥ficials from financa, bedgat and the respactive ling ministry;
training or counbry peer review that is tailored to address specific needs identified at the pear exchange event,

woluntary and damand-kad twinning of countries 10 deapen peerdaaming and eochange oppiunities; and

regular and timely followeup with pariicipants o asieas the appication of knowladge and skils acquired.

The policy disleques have provided an essantial platioem for praciitionars from ministries of finence and buwdgat (and & salact
aumber of Bne minsties) to share and learn fram the expensnces of thair pears and, whene apgropriate, to apply the lessons,
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Wihan it comes bo peer learning threugh regionad networks, CABR| has a comparative advantage in facilitating change by

bringing logethar practiticners with expenance in similar contects and confronting senilar PEM challgnges (whether across or
within countries or crganisations). The volurary nature of the arganisation has ensuned thal the participating budgetfinance
and lina-mintatry officials engage opanly and constructively and are commitied bo taking back wihat they have leamed to their

countries

The various aulputs of our polcy diglogues ane shown in Table &,

Table 6: Outpute of policy dialogues

Quarter

Qutpoi Location

1% ;1 April to 30 June WASH peer reviaw Cape Town

2018

2% July to 30
Septombaer 2018

3 q Detober to 31
December 2018

4™ 9 January to
March 2018

warkshop (Anglophone)

WASH pear aviaw Kigal
workshop
{Francophona)

VWAEMLU workshop on  Abddjan
appropniating and

diffusing programime-

bazed budgetng

Cash management Pratona
forecas! training

Strategles o broaden  Mawmabi
the invastor base

Rode of the legistabume n Narobi
true budpet process

Role of govemmants Aods Ababa
and budgets in
developing value chains

in agriculture

Participating Officials
countries

Botzwana, The Gamba, 21
Ghana, Lasalha, Henya,
Mpurities, Migeria,

South Africa

Burkina Fasc, CAR, 6
Céte d'Iveine, DRC,
Guinea-Conakry, Mal,
Rwanda

Banin, Burkina Faso, 14
Céte d'lvoira, Mak,
Mauritania, Momocso,

Seychallas, Togo,
Tunissa

The Gambia, Kenya, 24
Lasotha, Libaria,

Malawi, Mausivs,

Marnibia, Migena, Siera
Leans, Souwth Africa,
Uganda, Zarmia

Botewana, Chta ]
d'lvolra, Kampa, Mali,
Mauritius, Maorceco,
Mamibia, Nigena, South
Africa, Tunisia, Liganda,
Zambia

Burkira Faso, )
Democrals Republic of
Congs, Sambia,

Ghana, Guinas-

Conakry, Libaria,

Malawi, Maii, Nigana,

Sguth Africa, Uganda,
Zambia

Banin, Cordral Afican 19
Rpublic, Cote d'lvoira,
Eshiopia, Guinaa,

Kariya, Libena,

it MGTOGsa,
Higena, Scuth Africa

12




Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
Annusl Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Management Committee's Report

Policy dialogues on value for money in public spending

Twwo country reviews foliowed the policy dislogue on WASH financing that took place in Acora in Noveribar 2017, The first
renview with a group of Anglophang countries was held in Cape Town from 6 10 8 June, and provided an opporunity for officials
from finance minisiries and WASH ministies, deparimeants and agencies to share case studias on strategies, budgating and
implemenabon challenges in the WASH secier. The review alao examinad mone closely the respanses of twd Cibes in South
Africa to the 201817 waler shortages and sanitalion challanges, and provided an opportunity for parbicipants 1o visit an
inrovitive and [ow-cost wabker treaiment and reticulation proiect in an informal howsing sattlamien

The second review took place in Kigali from 20 to 22 June with Francophong govenmant officiats, and followed a format similar
tr that of the Caps Town gaetharing. Farticipants reviewad the key constraints in making a case for increased funding for
WASH, alongside the nesd to develsp cradible secior plans and programmas. The Kigali woncshop also provided an
opoadtunity to shane challenges and sxpadiences in tracking financial fiows in the sactor, which is highly decentralised & mary
countries.

A policy dialogue on approprialing and &ffuging prograrmme-based budgeting in the WAEMU regicn was held in Abdian on 10
and 11 Apnl 2018, The dialegue focused an saveral challenges that WAEMU mambar countras have sxparienced whan
implementing programme-based budgabng, incluging technical issues, such as decantralisation of expanditure comrals, pre-
and co-gxisting congditions, and the neglected non-technical change-managament aspacts. The dialofue also cordidinsd the
loeal conbaxt of aach of tha WAEMU membear countries, which wene expicbed 10 have implémentsd programme-basad
budgeting by 2017 but had cone 50 with vared and Emiled sucoess.

In acdifion te the fve WAEMLU member counties that attended, four non-WAEMU couninas wene invitad o shara casa siudies
on tha design and imglementation of programme-based budgeting in their countries. The partcipation of Céte D'lvoine in the
BPFMC programmie followsd an from the challenges that they dantified al the policy dialague hebd in Abidlan.

The policy dialogue an the rale of govemments in devaloping agriculture valua chaing for amployment craalion and poarty
reduction was held in Addsm Ababa on 26 and 27 March 2098, It brought lopether officials from 11 Anglophone and
Francophane countries working in the ministies of financa, budget. nalional planning and agricuitune, Theowgh the use of case
studies and fecilitated discussions, the dialogue addrassed the kay policy and ingtiutional challengas faced by govamments
whan adoptng a value-chain approach.

Facad with limitad rescwcas and capacily, the stale has i sirategically select sustainable intarvantions that will have the
largest impact in the chain. The govemnment's ability 1o eMectively salact and implement policies is central. Emphasis has baan
placed on building lasting benefcial relationships with the private sector and development partners as a way of leveraging
lrmibed resourcas.

Twin of the main areas of Intervantion idantified at the dialogue were providing suppod (6 smallholder armeérs it oversamang 1he
challenges posed by fragmented prodection, and to processors in increasing INWestment in domestic processing and walua
aci [ton.

In addition, govammaents face PFM challenges associaled with atepbng avalue-chain approach such as muli-sactor
bucgeting. A review basad on the capacity and knowiedge gaps identified cunng the dialogue will lake placa in July 2078,

Policy dialogues on budge! transparency for greater accountability and participation

On 27 and 28 Nevambar 2018, 8 polcy dialogue on the role of the legisiatura in tha budgel process was attendad by seniar
budget managers from finance/budget minsties and kegislatures, and public represantatives from pubbs accoun!s committeas
and budget and fnance committess. The dislogue was opened by the cabinel secratary for the Kenyan freasory, Mr Henry
Rotich. Over the two-dey evant, preseniations and facifiation of groug wirk ware undertaken by padticipants and CABR| gtalf,
Case sludias of Burking-Faso, Kenya and Nigeria were wsod b facilitale the sessions on the praparation of budgetls undes
different lagislative systems.

Some of tha key akeaways rom the Ealogue wire as folows,
Earier engagament by Mglalunes in the budgs! process anproves Budget hearings and can contribute to budgats baing

appiowesd within (ha stipulated timeframe, Earber engagemant atso limis the ‘parachuting’ of infrastructne projects that have
nat been adequately conceptualised and aspraisad inlo the executive buedgat.
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There is kess lension between the executive and legisiature under a padiamentary system, as cpoosed to a presidantisl
systam, but this does not maan thad tha one Systems i Mok aMeclive than the othes.

Functional budget offices in Parliament play an empertant rola in helping the various legisiative committaas to underdand the
fizcal framewsrk and budged allocations, and enprove their owersight rele. Several pasticipants who work for parlarmsentany
budget offices (PEOs) uged CABRI to assist in helping PBOS to becorme more functional.

Two follow-up evenls are plannad. Tha firat 8 a raining event 1o be hald in Mali an imgraving the functieaality of PEOS; the
second is a partnership between Liberia and Nigenia to exchange thair axperences of how 10 enhance the role of the
legislature in the budget procass within a presidantial system,

Palicy dialogueas on sustainable public dabt management

Following tha palicy dialegue on improving the co-ordination batwean cash and dabt management held in Accra on 21 and 22
March 2018, and in response to a request from participants for iraining in cash-fiow forecasting. CABRI pravided training for 11
countrias on the Brecasting food that 5 used by the South Afrcan Mational Treasury.

The galicy dialegue on strategias ta broaden the investar base, hald in Mairolki on 14 and 15 November 2018, was atlended by
cifcials fram public debt officas, ceniral banks, stock exchanges and gihed mafkel parbicipants. Establishing & sound lacal
imvesior base fy government securities is ona of the key building blocks when developing lecal dabl currency markets. Over
the twao-day evant, panel discussions, presantations and facitation of group work were undertaken by parteipants and CABRI
staf. Case studies of Cite D'lvaine, Kenya, Morocco and South Affica wena usad to faciiftate tha diffarent sessions.

Some of the key takeaways from the dialogue were as lollows:

primary dealers can do more than Irade govermment bonds, they can also serve an imporant adwisory funchon and educate
other market plavers

it & eritical for countries o undarstand who their potential investors are and what (ools they use o oblain inbermation or data;

& mix of foreign and domestic investors is key Tor stabilfy. as thair imasiment decisions typlcally do not mova in the same
cirachon at ihe same tme; and

introducing differant inancial mstruments allows governmaents 1o tangat the different Sourcas of savings availabhke in & country,
A faBaw-up training course on strengihening pimary dealer systems is planned for Morocen i Apal 2019,

Knowledge generation

Budgets in Afnca

Budget documents from the Budgets in Aftca database were downloaded 9 571 times during the reporting pericd, which
represents neady 3 38 por cinb year-or-Yaar iNCHeass,

PFM Knowledge Hub

The CABRI PFM Kngwhedge Hub () reglstared 58 453 users during tha repoding periad, which is a 157 per cent increase
compared 1o the previous perod, Docwments availabla on the hub warne downloaded 18 770 imes, mpresening a 52 par cenl
YEAr-of-yEar nceass.

Leadarship sfomas

Leademship steries of farmir and saning senior financa officials from Benin, Lisena, Malaw: and South Afnca ware finalised in
the first quarter and have been published on the CABR| PFM Knowledge Hub a8 15manubte videcs. Thase slores llusirale the
keadership rale of each of the alficials n specalic FFM reforms, as outined in Taibka 7.

Table 7: Leadership stories

Benin Improving budge! ransparency

Libaria Trennnl palicy rafam leading to a reduction of 35 par cant in
edaked coaly
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Pilalawi Design ard implementation of programmee-basad budgating
South Africa Introducing madium-term buedgating in the post- 1884 pariod

Afrca Debt Monitor

Fedlowdng the complation af the African Debi Monitar survay by 20 countries, a valdaton (of the data) workshop was held In
Mauwnsus ¢on 31 October and 1 November 2018, Data validabon of the 5 countries that did nof afend e Maumius workshop
will be underakan saparataly with each of the countias. The uplcading of data s underway and the launch of tha Africa Dakt
Meniser is plannad for Juna 2019

Public health budge! practices and procedures

Dalays in contraciing sanice providers resutbed inthe roll-cver of this project into the 2018430 fmancial yaar, Folkesing the
complation af the surviy, thi repod on budoet praclices and procedunes in Aftica will be compleled in 2018

Pubficafions

Social media

Table 8: Bacial medis audignee and redch

Facebook Number of page ikes: 104 879, Towal reach (page); 12 765
BT

Twittar Mumber of followers: 4 T30 Tolal Tweet enpressions: 2 318
G

Linkedin Numbiar of falloessrs, B84 Totwml imprassions: 287 180

Network governance
Management commiltee and general assembly

Crur blannual management committes (MC) and annwal ganeral assemkly (GA) meetings wera hald in Pretora on B and 3 May
2018, respecively. In addition to the considaration and approval of tha annual workplan and bucget for 2018/18, audiled
financial repart far 201817, new policies and staff appaintments, the GA alsa elected a new MC comprisad of Burkina Fasa,
Cote d'lvorre (Chasparson), Guinea-Conakny, Migaria and South Afica.

The M alzo met on 26 Novemser 2018 in Nairobi to approve the 201718 audit repat 2nd arnual financial stalements, tvo
renew the contract of the executive secretary for & three-year term {1 Agnl 20719 to 31 March 2022) ang o ratify he
appointrrents of new CABR] staf,

Financial management and audil

Marar Incomparated (hitps:fmorar.co. za) was appaintad by the managament comméttes for the 2041 718 Indemational Finencial
Reporting Standands (IFRS) awdt. An ungualibed audis repod and the annual fnancial statemants wene presenied ta the MC at
its mealing in Movambar 20718,
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Tne 201818 IFRS audit will commence in July 2018, The audit repart for the reporting peried will be presanted to the MC at its
maating in Nowamber 2015,

Lnaudited financal staternents for the penicd 2018719 are attached as Annaxura B.

Human resources management

Al #s May 2018 meating, the MG endorsed the appoinimant of Ms Awa Touray (programme officer] and Ms NihabSeng
Masinge (commumications and marketing assislanth

Four e appoinrtments wara andarsed by the MC a1 Bs November 2013 meating in Mairchd
Or Bindarn Bedasas (PFM specialist);

s Erika Venter [PA to the executive secratany;

Ms Jadia Naidoo (finance and admirsstration assstant). and

Dr Shanaz Brodrmann ([PFM oot

In addion, Ms Chanmaing Ferraira (finance officar) was contracied wuntil the end of December 2018 a5 ihe position &
suppored by AIDB funding. Ms Joana Banto wes promotad o pregramme manager in Movembar, following an intenaew

process,

Partnerships

Complemanting our workplan Tor the 201819 financal yeds, CABR| panreded wilh sevesal regesnal and intamatanal
crganisations 10 $harg cur knewicdge on PFM in Africa and to premate the greater involvemeant of praciiioners. Teble 8
descibes our collabaration wilh partness across our three resull areas; (i) value for money in public spanding: (i) budget
fransparency for greater paricipation and accountabd®y, and (i) sustainable public dabt management.

Table 9: Collabaraticn with partner arganisations

Partnar organisation/s CABRI's role

S World Water Week Waler lmegrity Mebwork, GLZ, Kenya Frezeniation on FFM and financing
Walar and Sanitation Cikdl Socelies isswes in WASH, using matenals from
Meabwark, Sanitaticn and Watar for All, owr policy dialogue and two reviews on
B2 WASH

African Netwerk of Parliamentary FBO=s from Mozambigue, Zimbabve, Préseniation on the rale of budget and
Budget Offices Conference Tanzania, Zambia, Uganda, Kemya, Escal institution
Ghana, and South Africa

Training of public accounts GIZ and parliamentarianz affillated to  Lecture on PFM

committess the Seuthern African Organisation of
Public Accounts Committees (South  Panel discussion on budgeting for tha
Africa, Mamibla, Mozambigque. Angola, SDGs
EBotswana, Lesothe, Malawl, Mauritius,

Zambéa}
PFM for social spending Intemational Labour Organisation Lecture on budget farmation and
Intemational Training Centre implementation of spending plans
Strengthening governance African Unsan Achvisory sanices
arrangamaents for the Peace Fund
Hlicit fimancial flows: Country riaks ATAF AFROQSAL AFROPAC GIZ Led the piat moarcise for the completion
ool of the cawnaliy fsks ieal by Mefacta,

Gabon and Kenya
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Training of public acesunts Parliament of Ghan

cammitteas

Annexures

Annexure A: Summary of BPFMC teams’ progress

Cauntry Problem statement

Cantral African Republic Diviations bistwedn planmed
and ttual capital eupenciiune

Cate d'lvoira Budgets allocated o MDAs
ara nad contricuting ta

axpactad resuls

Garmbia (1) Wheak overgight of SOES
incraasing the risk of

gontingant liabilities

Gambia (2) High dabt serice cagt

croveding cut prianty Spending

a, AFRDPAC,. GIZ

and nexi 51IEI|:|5
Frogress

Irirodetnd nesy PrOoEsgng 15}
sireamling the procurement of
capdal irvestmants

Irstalled regular
communication on investment
projects batween MODAs and
the procurament ofice

Targeled training Lo MDA and

procurement oificers

Sat up B co-ordination
siruchure batwaen the budget
and public imsestments
directorates

Provided targelsd raining o
MDAS' credit managers on
gt inforrmation
reqUremants

St up and piloted sactaral
comemittaas {5) for imoraved
oversight of investmant
propacts

Revignwad the S0E A2, and
pathened mputs for SOE
parfarmanse measurameant

Dasigned a simplified cash-
ficew regorting femplate

Incraased the frequency of
S0E repording from quartosty
1o mcadily

Finalizad the memorandum of
undersianding (Mall] (clarnty
the co-operalion betwaen the
mintatry af finance and the
cantral bark)

introduced an MEE framewsork

Leciure on PFM

Maxt steps

Minister 1 approve
recommendatons of MDA co-
ordination warkshop

Install an investment spanding
accountandiby commities

Suppart pllet sectoral
committeas in charge af
investmant budget allocation

Engure to-ordmnation with thi
Public imestment dinectorate

Cantiriue with (rairing for MDA,

credit Managers on propect
informabon requirements

Engage MDA on issues
relatad to virements based on
data analysis

Engwa approval of tha SOE
Acl

Introdisce SOE parormante
ITHEEE Lrarmsant

Renaw S0E board membears

Improne expandilune fracasts

Ensure implamantation of the
MA&E framework and the Mol
with the central bank

Review and update the

More regular engagemant with medium-term debl strategy

local immesion
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Ghana

Leaaotha

Libaria

Ovarspanding by MDAS
leading to budget cverung
which impede sanace delnnery

EEnistry of finance coas not
know how mauch MIDAS regquing
or whan cash is requirad

limitad alfocatien of funds for
public sector investmant

Reducad fhe numbes of st
rrinube requests by MDA
affecting budget anvalope by
creating & buffar during the
aliacation of budget cailings

kfentfied areas of
improvamant durning the
budged formulabion slage,
which lad to an imgraved
relatiorship bafween e
finance mindtny and Spending
minigines in managing
comenilmants and
ExpandnLTas

Liguidity managamen
commiktes rosusciated with
tarms of reference

Communication and ¢o-
ardnation with MOAS
improwved

Database and clazsification of
bank accounts devaloped with
178 accounts closed

Increase in guantity and
quality of expenditure slan
submissions by MDAS

Introduction of manthly
reconciliation

Increasa in the approval of
procurement plans and in the

projects and undendtilisation of completion of public secior

allocated funds,

investmant projects through

Dedicated hedp caslk for PSIP
irnplamenting SEs at the
Fublic Procuremant
Concessions Commission

24-hour turnaround time for
procurameant raquests

Greather dwansness of causes
ol procunerent nan-
compiance and delays

Remndorced maaitoring of cash
allatrrends

Mare updated axpenditune
repons analysis.

Diffusion programme to be
redled out in 219

Expanditine planning and
reconciliation guitelings 1o be
davaloped with MOAS

incarporation of al bank
accounts into IFMIS

Strangthaning of FFM laws o
address gaps discovenad
during BPFMG programma,

Maoniter the parformanca of
budpet commitiess

Conduct targeled procurement
wraining

Support further accoumntability
of investment budgel
BB

Sot up ragular cngagemants
with Libaria Revenua Authority
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Management Committee's Report

Migeria Inadequate fundng of health  Adopled an ald Manstivn plan  Supaod of precunemant
SBCHor resulting in poos supported by an inler- processes and implamantation
prnary health car oulcomes  minisierial technical working  of the financial accountability

groug framéwsad for thie donee
fransition plan

Faciitaled an increased
aliecation of B per cant ta the  ldentity alemative funding
peaith sector budge! for 2019 sources.

Greater co-pparatian betwean  Resaarch reasons for large

ministry of budgat and diffaranca in immunisation
naticnal planning, haallh, and coverage

the national primany Realth

cang developmenl agency

Improvameant in data collection

Wil workshop 1o shara

findings of work undadaken by
T
3.  Management commilles
Tha mambers in office at the date af this report are as (oliows:
Membars
Mr C Ngournissa - Chaiparson Republic Cote dihvaira
Mr O Ayodele Migaria
Mr PTE WVokouma Burkina Faso
Mr B Fafngica Rapubhc of Scuth Afbica
Mr A Barry Republc of Guinea
Mr NG Cole - Ex-aificis mermnber Exacutreg Sacradary

This new Manzgameant Committes was appomntad on © May 2079 af CABRM': annual Generpl Assembly meating. The
Menegemant Committes will sare for a pericd of 2 year,

4. Property, plant and eguipmant

Thene wad nd changs in the nature of the property, plant and egquipment of ihe corporalion or in the pofcy regarding their usa,
5. Evants after the reporting period

Tha mambers ara not aware of any matenal event which cocurrad after the reporting date and up to the date of this repart

B. Going concern

Tha members believes thal the corporation has adequate firancial resources lo continue in operation for the foresesakle future
and ascordingly the anaual inancial statemants have been prapaned on @ going concarn basis. The members ana satisfied
that the corporaton s in & saund fnancial gesdion and 1Hat it has access 1o sulbcient borrdwing faclilies to meal its
foreseeabla cazh requiremantz. The mambars ane nol sware of amy new material changes that may adversely impact the
orgarssaton. The mambers ane also not aware of ary material non-compliance with statulary or regulatory mequirements or of
any pending changes 1o legslation which may affect the arganisation,

T.  Auditors

Maorar lincorporated continued i olfice as auditors fer the organsation for 2019,
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8. Date of authorisation for issue of financial statements

The annual firansal staemeants have bean authonsed for issue by the membess on Tuesday, G5 Novambar 20118, Mo authority
wits given to anyans o amend the annual fnancial stetements afier the date of issue,

8. Acknowledgemants
Thanks and appreciation are exdended 1o all staff, suppliers and members for their contnued suppor of the drganisaton
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE OF COLLABORATIVE AFRICAN BEDGET REFORM
INITIATIVE (CABRI)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of CABRI set oul on pages 5 to
43, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as 31 March 2019,
and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows feor the year then ended, and noles lo
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policias.

in our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all matesial
respects, the financial position of CABRI as at 31 March 2019 and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements
section of cur report. We are independent of CABRI in accordance with
the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional
Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statermenls In
South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical
reqguiremants applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA
Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B).

We believe that the evidence that we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other information

The management commiflee is respansible for the other information. The other informaticn
comprises the Management Committee Report and the Detalled Income Statement which
we obtained prior to the date of this report. Other information does not include the financial

staternents and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinlon on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
exprass an audit opindon or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statemeaents, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are required fo
reasport thatl fact.

We have nothing o report in this regand.
Responsibilities of the Management Committee for the Financial Statements

Tha management committes is responsible for the preparation and fair presantation of the
financial statements in accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards and
requirements of the Agreement Establishing the Collaborative Africa Budget Reform
Initiative, and for such internal control as the management committee determine is
nacessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatemant, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the management commitee is responsible for
assessing the organisation's ability o conlinue es a going concemn, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concermn basis of
acoounting unless the management committee either intend to liquidate the organisation or
to cease operations, or have no realistic allernative but o do 30.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our cpinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is nol a guarantee thal an audit conducled in accordance with Intermational
Standards on Auwdiling will always detect a material misslatement when il exisis.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these financial statements.




Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As parl of an audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise
profassional judgement and maintain professional sceplicism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulling from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal controi relevant to the audif in order to design audit
procedures that are sppropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
axpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablaness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures mada by the management committee.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the managemant committees” use of the gaing
concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions thal may cast significant
doubt on the organisation’s ability to confinue as a going concem. If we conclude that a
material uncedainty exisls, wa aré required to draw attention in cur auditor's report to
the ralated disclosures in the financial statements or, i such disclasures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audil evidence
cbtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, fulure evenis or conditions
may cause the organisation to ceasa lo continue as a going concem.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial slatemeants,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant auwdit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in inlernal contrel that we identify during our audil.

We alse provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Mumber 39475 daled 4
December 2015, we report that Marar Incorporated has been the auditor of CABRI for four
financlal years.

o

Per: Roshan Morar

Director

Morar Incorporated
Chartered Accountants (5.A.)
Registered Auditors

29 November 2013
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019

Figunes in US Dollar Mata(s) 2018 20448

Azgals

Non-Currert Assats

Propearty, plart and aguipmearnt 3 28,642 41,806

Intangible asseats 4 18 1.8

28,657 42,911

Curn@eng Assats

Trade and other rechivables g 675,823 729,542

Cash and cash equivalants 8 3,518,790 4,288 515
4,195,713 8,018,157

Total Assets 4 234 370 5,061,068

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Retained income 1,788 280 1,490,621

Ligkilitins

Cumrent Liabilites

Trade and othar payables i 250,608 257 308
Dedarred income 8 1,521,536 2674 677
Ao sinng 8 ah 23a 42, 738
Amaunts receed in advance 10 g1r. 711 595,724

436,050 3570447
Tatal Equity and Liabilities 4,224 370 5,061,068
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Annual Financial Statements for the year endad 31 Warch 2018

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Figaras in LS Dodlar HMota(s) 2014 2018
Ravanua 11 3428614 3 265 415
Profitf (loss) on exchange dilfferances 12 (157 535} 131 487
Oihar operating expensas (3.528.651) (3 TE22TI)
Cparating profit (laas) 13 242 338 {385,371}
imsastment incoma 15 55,329 0,485
Profit (lass) for the year 2497 B57 [304,902)
Mher compranansise ncoma - -
Total comprahenaive incomae (loss) for the yeaar 297 B5T [(304,902)
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Retainad Tetal equily

Figures in US Doliar Eome

Balanca at 01 April 2047 1,795,523 1,795,523
Loss Tor tha year {304 502) (30, B02)
Ofher comprehensive incoma " =
Total comprehensive Loga for the year {304,802 (304,502)
Balance at 01 Aprl 2018 1,450,623 1,490,623
Prafil for the yaar 297 B5T T5T BET
Clkhesr comphehansive ncoma - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 207 65T H7T 65T
Balance at 31 March 2019 1,788,280 1,788,380

Note(s)
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Statement of Cash Flows

Figures in US Dollar Mota|s) 2019 2018
Cash flows frem operating activities

Cash (usad injganarsiad from aparalions 16 {676, 508) 1,318,407
Inbenest income 55,328 60,468
Profit/ (lass) on exchange differences (167 B335) 131,487
Met cazh from aparating activities (TTE812) 1,510,362
Cash flows framm investing activitias

Purchase of property. plant and Sguipmant 3 (12,0000 (14,3000
Cash flows from financing activities

Mcwvament in amounts recaived in advanca 21.987 -
Total cash movement for the year [TER B25) 1,496,053
Cash ai the beginning of the year 4 288 815 2,782, 582
Total cash at énd of the year = 3,619,790 4 288 B15
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Accounting Policies

1. Significant accounling policies
The principal accounting policies agpled in the preparaticn of these annual financial staterments are 5% out bekow.
1.1 Basls of preparation

The annual financal stalements hawe bean prepared on the going concam basss in accordancs with, and in compliance with,
Internationsl Financial Reporting Stancards (IFRS™ and Intemational Financial Reparting Interpretations Commitbes CIFRICT)
interpretations msued and efective &t the me of prepaning thesse annual financial stalements and the Agréement EStablishing
the Collabaratveg Alrica Budget Refarn Initiathva of South Afeca, as amensad

The annual finarcial statemants have bean prapared an tha higlone cost canvenlion, uwilass othanwisa stated in the accounting
policias which follow and inconporate the principal accounting colicies s&t out below, They are presentad in US Dollars, which is
tha eompany's functicnal currency.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previcus pariod.
1.2 Significant judgements and scurces of sstimation uncertainty

The preparation of annual financial statermants in corfammity with IFRS requires management, from time to tima, to make
judgemenis, estimates and assumptions that affsct the application of policies and repored amounts of assets, liabilivas,
incoma and expenses. Thase astimales and associated assumplions am based on expanence and vancus other tactors that
are balievad fo ke reasonahble undes the crcumstaness, Actual resulls mizy differ from these estmatas. The estimates and
undeddying assumptions are reviewed on a0 ongoing basis, Revisions [ accaunting estimatas are recognisad in the penad in
which the estimates an ravised and in any fulwe pariods affecied,

1.3 Property, plant and eguiprment

Prapadty, plant and aguipmant are tangible assets which the srganisation halds for its awn use ar far rental 1o others and which
are expacted 10 be used for mona than o year,

An ibeen af proparty, plant and equipment is necognised 83 an asset whan il (= probable that future economic benafits
associatad with the Rem will ficw 10 e organisabon, and the cast of the em can be measured refiably.

Pragseety, plant and equipment s subseguenty stated al cost less accumalated depretiation and any actumulaied impaimmant
losses

Dapraciation of Bn asset commences when the assel & available for use a3 intended by managemeant Degreciabon is charged
o wiite of the asset's carrying amownd ower 45 estrmated useful life o iz eatimated residual value, using a method that best
reflacts the pattern in which the assel's sconomic benafis ane consumed by the cagansation. Leased assets are deprecatsd in
A consistent manner awer the sharer of their axpected usatul Ives and the lease term. Depraciation is not chaged to an assal
if ils estimatod reshdual value axceeds or (4 egual 1o its carmving amount. Dapreciation of an assel ceases at the sarlier of the
date that the 23581 is classified as held for 2ale or derecognised

The wsaful lves of iterms of praparty, plant and equipment have been assesced ag follaws:

ltern Depreciation mathod Average useful life
Fumiture and fisxtures Straight line 5 years
Office aquipmant Strawght line 5 yBars
IT mquipmant Strabght line 3 years
Leasahold imprgvements Siraight line A ymars

Thie regidual wvalue, uselul life and depreciation method of each assat ane reviewed al the end of cach reponing year, IF ihe
expeciations diffar from previous estimates, the change is atcountad for prespactively as & changi in AcEouning asimale.

Each part of an item of property, plan: and equipment with a cost that is significant in relatian 1o the 1218l cost of the ftam is
depreciated saparataly

The dapreciation change Tor each year is recognised in poofl or losa unlass i is inciuded in the canying amownd of anaiher
AnsE

48




Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
Annual Firancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Accounting Policies

1.3 Property, plant and eguipment (cominued)
Impainmeant teste are parfonmed on proparty, plant and equipmant when thice © an indcalas that they may bé impained. When
the sarrying amount of an tam of property, plant and aquipment is aEsas5ed 10 Be Righer than the eslimaed recoverable

amaount, an impaimant loss 5 necognsed immedsately in prof or [oas 1o bang the carying amaounl o line with the reciweradla
amount.

An ilem of property, plant and equipment is derecogresed upon disposal or whan no fulure economic banafits ana axpeched
from it$ conbnued use or disposal. Any gan or laas arsing from the deracagrition of an item of progerty, plant and equigment,
determined as the differance betwean the nel dispasal proceeds, if any, and the camymg amount of the iterm, 15 included in
prefit or lags when the itom is derecognsed.

1.4 Intangicle azsats
An intangible assal i recognised when

+  ilis probable that the sxpected future ecenamic benedits that are atniutable to the asset will fow to the antity; and
= the cost of the 25501 cint b measunsd raliably.

Intangisie assels are inikally recognised at cost

Intangisle assets are camad al cost less any accumulated amortsation and any impairment 105565,

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefnite usehul Be when, based on all relevant facions, thers is no fraseeable
limit b the penicd cver which the asse? is sxpecied o ganerata nel cash inflows, Amonisaton s nod pravided fos these
imMangible azsets, but they s tesied for mmparmen anmeally and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be
impairgd, For all other intangiie assets amarisation 12 prowveded on 3 sraight line basis over their usahd lifa.

The armaisgation parod and the amorntisation mathed for infangitie assats ams revicwed cvery peried-and,

Reassessing the usaful life of an mtangible assat with & finite wielul Bfe sl il W classified s indefinala is an indscator that
tha assat may be mpaired. A @ résull the 25568 B bested bor impaarmant and the remaining Canrying amount & amartsed ovar
its wsaiul life,

Amerisation s provaded to wide down 1he intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to thedr resicual values as follows:

Iem Usaful ife
Computer saftware & years

1.5 Financial instrumants

Firansial mstrumbnis held by the orgamsation ane clagsibied i accordance wilh the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instrumants,
Trade and other receivables

Classification

Trade and othar receivables, e::duuim;. when apolicable, VAT and pregaymenis, ane classhed as financal assels
sutsaguently measured al amortsed cost (nobe 5)

Thay have been classified in this manner because their contraciual terms five risa, on spaciied dates ta cash ficws that ane
sobely payments of prncipal and interest on the pnncipal cutstanding, and the organisation’s business maodel is to collect the
cantractual cash flows on trade and other recaivables

Recognition and measuromant

Trade and other receivables ane recognised when the organisation becomes a pamy 10 the contraciusl provisions of the
receivables. Thay ane measured, a1 inisal recopniion, at fair valee plus transaction cosis, If any.

They arg subsequently measured al amonised coat,
The amart=sad cost is the amount recognised on tha mceiveble initially, minus principal repayments, plus cumadative

amortisation (interasi] wsing the effective inlerest mathod of any difference betwean the initial amaunt and the maedty ameunt,
adjusted for any loss allewanca.
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Accounting Policles

1.6 Financial instruments [continuead)
Trade and other payablas
Classification

Trade and eiher payables (nobe T), axcluging VAT and amounts recaived n advance, ag classified as financial kabilites
subsequently measuned at amotised cost

Recognition and measurement

They are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions, and are measured, a1 mitis! recogniion,
at fair value plus trancaction cagts, if amy.

They are subsequantly measurad a1 amatsed cosl using the effective inlerest mathod,

The efectve interes! method s a mathed of calculating the amatised cost of & fnancal habilily and of alacaling inbenas!
expanse over the relevant parico. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts astmated future cash payments
(including all faas and points paid or recesvwed that fom an integral pant of the affective intarest rata, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounis) threwugh the sxpecied life of the fnancal Babllity, o (where appropriata) a shorar pariod, to the
amortised cost of a inancial liability,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents are stated at camying amount which is deamead 1o bae Tair walue,

Bank avardrafts

Bank overdrafis ane initially messured at fair value, and are subsequantly measwed 8l amortisad cost, wsing the effaclive
interest rate method.

Derecopnition
Financial asapts

The organisation derecognises a financial asset only when the comiraciual nghis to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and subsiantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the assat to another pardy. If tha
organisation neiher iransfers nor ralaing substantially all the risks and rewands of ownership and continues 1o control She
transferred assel, the organisation recognises (ts retalimed Interest in the assal and an associated hability for amounts it miry
hawe to pay. If the organsation retaing substantially 2l tha nsks and revangs of ownarship of a ransfered inancal assel, the
ofganisation continues o recagnise the financial asset and Blso recognises a collateralised borrowang 10F 1he procesds
resfTved.

1.6 Lezsas

A lease is classified 85 a finance lease if i tarsfers substantally all the nsks and rewards inedeantal 1o ownership. & lease s
classifad as an oparating lease if i doas nod analer substankally all the risks and rewards incidental to cwnership.

Operating leases - lesses

Oparating lease paymenis are recoyrsed &5 an agpanss o0 8 staight-ine basis over the lease tenm, The diference betwoen
the amounts recognised as an exponsa and the contractual paymants ang Moo a5 40 operating lease asgal This lability
i not discounied.

Any condingent rents are expensed o the parcd they are incurmed,
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1.7 Impairment of asseis

The crganisabon assesses ot cach and of the neponing pedod whather thare iz ary indication thel an asset may be impaired, If
any such indication sxisls, the organsation estimales the recovarable amount of the assal

Irrespectrag of whether there is any Indicatan of impaimant. the organisation also
= ests intangide assets wilh an ndafinite usaful life or intangible assats not yet availadle for use for impairnend
annually by sompaing it camying amaunt wish its recovarable ameunt. This impairment lest is performad duning the
annual pericd and at the sama time evary pancd

It thare is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoveradie amount s astimated for the individual assat. [f itis not
possithe to estimate the recoverable amount of the ndividual assat, the recoverable amount of the cash-ganerating unit (o
which the asset belongs is determingd,

IF the recaverable ameount of &n 23381 15 kegs than (ts camying amount, the carmying amount of the assel is educed o its
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of essets carried at cost lass any accumulated depreciation oF amartsalion i recognised immedabely in
peafid o loss. Asy impairment loss of 8 evalued asset s ineated as & revalualion decease,

An antity assesses al each repdrting date whethar thire B any ndication that an imganment koea recognised in pricr panods for
assets ather than goeadwill may io longer exist or may have decreased. I any such indScallon exists, the recovarable amounts
of those assets are estimabed,

The increased carnying amount of an asset othar than goodwill atiricudable to a revarsal of an impairment loss does nol extaed
ihe carrying amaount that would nave been catermined had ne impairmant less been mcognised for the assel in prior penods,

A revarsal of an mpairment loss of assats camed at cost less accumulated deprecaton o amorisation olher than goodwil &
recogrised immediately in profit or loss, Ay reversal of an impairmant loss of a revaluad assel is treated 8= & revaliation
ncreasa,

1.8 Employes benefits

Shart-term emplayes benefits

The cost of shor-tarm amployee benefits, (those payable within 12 months afler the senice i renderad, such a8 paid vacaton
leeve and sick leave, bonuses, and nor-monatary benefits such as medical care), are racognisad in tha pariod in which the
service is rendarad and ane noft discounied

The copecied cost of compensated absences is recognized as an expanse as the employess render sanvicas that increase
their entitlement o, in e case of non-accumulating absancas, when the SDEaNCE SCCUrs.

The expacied cost of prafit sharing and Eonus payments is recognised as an expanse whan thens is a legal or construcinve
oblgation to meake such payments 83 a result of past perfarmanca

149 Provisions and contingencies
Previsions ang recognsed when
+  the srganisation has & present ebligalion 28 8 result of 8 past event;
= it s probable that an cutflow of rescurces embodying econsmic Benalits will be requirad to seitle the obligation; and
«  @feliable sstimate can e made of the oblgation.
The emeunt of & provision is the presant valee of the expanditure axpectad to be requined io satile the oblgation,
Vhana some or all of the expendilure réquired 10 seflle a provision is ¢xpocted fo be reimbuersed by anathar party, the
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it s vifually certain that relmbursement will be racaivad if tha entity
sattias the cbiigation. The reimburssment shall ba teated as a separate assel. Tha amaunt recognisad for the reimbursement
shall not éxcead the amount of the provison
Prowasions afe no? recagnsed for luture cparating losses.

Caontingant assats and cantingent labilites are not recognised.

3t
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Accounting Policies

1.10 Gevernmant grants

Grants arg recognised when ther i$ reasonable asqurance that:
+  the srganisation will comply with the cenditions attaching to them; and
*  the grants will be recenved

Grants arg recogn'sed 32 incoma over tha paricds necessary 1o match them with the relsted costs that they are intended to
SOMPEnsate.

A grant that bacomes receivable as compernsation for expensas or leses already incumad or for the purpese of giving
immediate finarcial support to the enlity with ro future related costs (s recognised as ncomea of the pariod in which it betomes

racaivable,
Grams refabed 1o ncoma are presenied as a credit in the proft or loss (separaiely),

Grants received bafore the arganisation will comply with the conditiors attached 1o them are satisfied, are recognised as
dafarmed income.

1.11 Revenue

Havanue is moasured al the fair value of the consideration recehed oar receivabla and represants the amounts recansable foe
goods and sericas provided in the normal coursa of business,

Inderasl s recognised, i profit of loss, using the offactive interest rate methad,

1.12 Borrowing costs

All gther Barrowing costs are récegaised as an expansa |n the period in which they ana ingurred,
1.13 Translation of foreign currancies

Feraign surrancy transactiona

& foreign curency ransachion is recorced, on inital recogriton in US Dollars, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
£pat mxchangs rate babwssn the functionral currency and the foreign currency a1 the date of the ransaction.
The scwrce used for forsign exchange rales n the accounting was abtained frem the South Adrican Reserm Bank,

M1h¢ end of the repoding pedod:
feraign currancy monelary imsms are translated using the: closing rate;
«  non-monetary ilems that are measurad in terms of histonsal cost in @ foreign curmency ane Iranslated waing the
exchange rata &t the date of the ransaction: and
*  non-monetary ilems that are maasured at fair vahee in @ fargign cufféncy ane ransiyted uging the exchangs rabes al
the dafe whon the fair value was determingd,

Exchange differencas arising on the salllerment of morstary ilems of on ranskating monatany itams at rates differant from those
at which they wens translated on initial recagnition during the persd of in previcus annual financial statements ang MecogResed
in profit or loss in the seriod in which they arise,

Whisn & Qain of l88 on & nod-monelary item is recognised to othar comprebansive ncome and accumulabed in eculy, amy
exchange componant of that gain or loss is recognisad 1o other comprshensive income and accumulated in equity, When a
gain af lass on 3 non-monatany ilem s recognsed in profit o lass, any exchangs companant of thal gain of kSS 1S recognsed
in prafit ar loss,

Cash flows arising from fransaciions in a foreagn cumency ane recorded in US Dollars by applying 1o the foraign cumancy
amaunt the mxchangs rate bebwasan the US Deliar and the loresgn currency at the date of the cash fiow
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Motes to the Annual Financial Statements

Eigurm. in LS Doliar

2019 2018

2. Mew Siandards and Interpretations

21 Standzrds and inforpretations affective and ld-ﬂpl:ld in tha curmant waar

Ir e cumens year, 1he organisation has adopted the isllowing standards. and interpretations that are affective Tor the cument

hnancal year and that ane relavant io (= oparabons:

Standard Interpretation:

L]

IFRS & Fingncial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenua from Contracts with Cuslomers

Amendments o IFRS 15 Clarifications o IFRS 15 Revenue
fram Cofiracms with Customars

Amendments o IFRS 2- Classification and Measuremant of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments o 1AS 28 Annual Improvements to IFRS

2014 - 2016 cycle

Amandments to IFRS 1. Annual Improvements o IFRS

2074 - JO0NE cyche

Effective date:

Years beginnting on ar
after

01 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 Jenuary 2018

01 January 2018

01 January 2018

01 January 2018

Expocted impact:

The adoption of thie
glandard has nothad a
matedtal impact on the
results of the company, but
hes resulied in mone
disclosung than woulkd have
praviously baen provided
in the financal staberments
The adoption of this
standard has not had a
matenal impact an tha
resulis of the company, bul
has reauked in maone
gdeciosune than would have
pravipusly bean provided
in the financial statameants
The adoption aof this
standarc has nothad a
matarial impact on the
results of the company, but
has resufed in mon
gesciosure than woulkd have
previgushy been provided
in tha finansial statarments
The adoption of this
standard has nold had a
matenal impact on the
rasulis of the company, but
nas resulted in maore
dizciosura than would have
pravicusly bean proviged
in tha financial stalamants
The sdoption of this
standarg has not had a
matarial impad on the
regulis of the compdany, bu
has resuibed in mon
dizciozura than would have
previcusly been proviied
in 1ha fingncial stalamanis
The agoplion of this
standand hags nol had &
matarsl impact an the
results of the compary, bt
has resulted in mone
disclosure than would have
previously been provided
in the francial Stements
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MNotes to the AI‘IF_I!.IE‘ Financial Statements

Figures n US ollr 2019 2078
2. Hew Standarde and Interpratations (continwed)
amandmants (o 1AS 40 Transfers of [nvesiment Prapeny 01 January 2018 Tha adopton of this
standard has not had a
matasnial impact on tha

results of the company, bul
has resulied in mon
gaschesung than wauld have
prbviously Desn provided
i i inancal slatemants
= Foregn Cuirensy Transachons and Advance Considerabon 01 January 2018 The adaption of this
Skandand has not had a
matarial mpact on the
results of the company, but
has resufled in mong
aischosure than would hava
previpusly baen provided
in the financial statements
+  Amendments io IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 8 Finarcial 01 January 2018 Tne adoption of this
Instruments with IFRS 4 Ingurance Coniracis standard has nol had a
matanial impact on ihe
rasults of the company, but
has redulled in Mo
digclosung than would hive
praviously been provided
i the financial stalemants

2.2 Standards and interpretations nof yet effective

The company has chasen nat 55 early adopt the fallowmng standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mangaiary for the comaany’s aceounting penods beginning on or afier 01 April 2015 or later panods:

Standard! Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on of
after

*  IFRS 17 Insuranca Contracls 01 January 3021 Unikely there will be a
matlarial impact

. Plan Amandmeant, Curtailment o Satilement - Amendments 01 January 2018 Urilkaly there will ba a
to 1AS 18 matarial imgoact

- Leng-tanm Irmtenasts in Joint Venlutes and ASS0CIAteS - 01 January 2018 Linlikaly there will ba a
Amendmants o |AS 28 matarial impact

«  Pregayment Features with Negative Compensation - 01 January 2018 Uniikaly there will be a
Amendment o IFRS 9 matarial impact

«  Amengments 1o IFRS 3 Business Combanalions: Annual 01 January 2018 Unlikaly thare will ba a
Impiovamants 1o IFRS 2015 - 2017 cycle matarial imgact

«  Amengments 1o IFRS 11 Joint Arrangemeants: Annwsl 01 January 2018 Unlikely thsne will ba a
Irnpiovements o IFRS 2015 - 2017 eycle ALl irmoac

Amendmenta o 145 12 incoma Taxes: Annual 01 January 2015 Unlikely thene will be a
Imgrovemeants ta IFRS 2015 - 2017 eycle mabanal impac

«  Amendmants fo |AS 23 Bomowing Costs: Annual 01 January 2018 Unlikely there will be a
Improvemants o IFRS 2015 - 2017 oydla matarial imgact

+  LUncedtainly over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2018 Uniikely there will be a
matarial imgact

+ |FRS 18 Laasas 01 January 20718 Uinlikely there will ba a
matarial imgact




Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative
Annual Financial Statemanis for the year ended 31 March 2018

Motes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in US Daolar 2019 2018
1. Property, plant and eguipment
0g 2078
Coster  Accumulated Carrying walue  Costor  Accumulated Carrying value
revaluation depraciation revaluation depreciatian

Fumiture ang fxtures 28,331 [17.BE4) 11,487 27,088 (12,553) 14,543
Office eguipment 5,380 {1638} 37E3 1,789 [1,183) 576
IT equipmeant a5 414 (31 562) 13,422 s1.818 (33,198) 18,618
Leasshold Improvermenis 30,707 (30.707) . 30,707 (22,838) _‘{._EE
Total 110,841 |82,193) i L 114,368 {69,782) 41,808

Reconciliation of property, plant and eguipment - 2019

Oipar g Additions

Depreciation Total

balance
Fumiturg and foduras 14,543 2,138 {5,312} 11467
Office squipmant TR IE2D [443} 3753
IT eguipment 18618 £, 143 {11,339) 13422
Leagehold improvements T.8E6D 1 {7800} -
41,606 12,000 (24,964) 28,642

Reconcillation of property, plant and equipment - 2018

Opaning Additions

Depreciation Total

balance
Fumiture and finfunes 20,300 - {5,757} 14,543
Offico equipment 168 E51 [243) 576
IT equipmient 13,862 13,650 {8,903 18618
Leasahold improvements 18,363 - {10,454} 7889
52,693 14,310 (25,387) 41,608
4. Intangible asseis
201% 2018
Costl Accumulated Carrying value  Cost! Apcwmulated Carrpng value
Valuation amaortisation Valuation amortisation
Compuner sofaane E.49498 [8.982) 15 7,143 [5,B3E) 1,305
Reconcilliation of intangible aszeis - 2015
Qpening  Amortisation Total
balance
Comiputer saftwara 1,305 {1,280 15
Reconciliation of intangible assais - 2018
Opening  Amortisation Tatal
balance
Cempuber saftwara 2,705 {1,400 1.205
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in US Doar 2019 2018

& Trade and ciher recelvables

Trade recaivables 620 926 402 E00
Craposits 8,854 G475
Prepayments 430 12,043
Sundry Debtors Receivable 3B T3 A0E B54
Total irade and cthar recelvables 875,823 729,542

Split batween non-current and current pertions

Current assaets 675,923 T28 543

The ageing of trade and cther recelvables Is as follows:

0 - 3 days 34,930 303 443
30 - &0 clays - =
60 - 60 davs 32T G2 &02 50D
120+ days 31 23600

Men-payment of ipes can Be for vanous regesns, intieding polizal or economec or arvircnmental difficultiss that a country s
ixsing which then requides tha country to redirect funding to reschding this challange. In thase ca5es, the moember couniny
would communicala o meamibers a the MCGGA meetling or via 8 comaspendence bo the Secretariat. Undil such communacpion
s recetved, the Secratanal is not in a position ta unilaterally wiite off overdua membarship fSises,

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and ciher recenvables which ane less than 12 months pasl due are nol congadered 1o be impalned. At 31 March 2019,
& 0.00 ware past due but not impained

The ageing of ameums pas? due but ret mpaired is as kilows
Trads and other receivables impaired
Ao ol 37 March 2016, rade and cther receivablas of § 763,730 (2018 £ 783 350 ware impaired and provided for,

The canying amount of irace and othar racesvabies ane danominatad in the following cumencags:

Trace recaivables - United states dollar 1.393 656 1,195,850
Trade recaivablas Impaired g3, ral}
Trade recaivables after impairment 628,825 402 500

Thie aging of thse trade and other recaiables i &s follows:

12 months past due 3458 548 260,000
24 menths pas! due 138,350 195,000
36 months past due 276,832 338,350
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Frgures in LIS Dollar 2018 2018

6. Gash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consst of.

Bank palanoes 3,518,780 4,288,515

The camying ameunt of cash atd cash equivalents are dencminaled in the falawang cumencess and convensd to USD as at

31 March 201% far the 3010019 Sngacel year a 1he following rales

Zouth African Rand X 14,5968 = £1
Linited States doilar

Great British pound GBF 0,76583 = $1
Swiss Frank CHF 0.8880 = 51

7. Trade and other payables

Financial Instruments
Trade payablas
Accrued expansas

The net camrying amownis, of trade payables, are dencminated in the following curmencios.

Sowth African Rand
Euwa
Uinted States dollar

8. Deferred income

Dautsche Gesallschal e Internationale Zusammenadait (GI1Z) GmbH
Matioral Treasury (Republic of South Afca)

FirstRand Lanitad

il and Medinda Gates Foundaton

Tive Williar and Flors Hewlalt Foundation

Swizs State Secretanat of Economic Aflnirs

Afcan Develsamant Bank

10214320  9.870,854

2761813 1281749

50 2,790

55,940 404,832

221 ZRG 141,585

20320 115413

250,609 267,308

938827 1134254

43,536 4,110

96,931 :

1,082,344 1,138,384

- 2.988

63,447 113,105

. 1,720

797924 2,100,032
200,000 ;

: 438475

455,165 8,357

Dafamad incoma consists of funding recened from varous donors fo be ulilised by the crganisation in temns of the agreement

betwean the donors and the srganisation,

The geferred income for Deulsche Geselschatt fir Intemationale Jusammenarbed (GEZ) GmbH s for expanses incurned in the

201815 Enancial yedr and tha remaining funds 1o be recaned in 2018730,

ar
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Figures in U5 Dollar 2019 2078

9. Provisions

Resonciliation af pravisions - 2018

Crpening Additions Tatal
balance
Prowvigion for leave pay 42 738 3,496 45,334
Reconcillation of provisions - 2018
Opening Additians Total
balance
Provigion for leave pay 23171 18,557 42,738
10. Amounte recelved in sdvance
kambarship fees invoiced in advance SE0,000 565,000
PDM Hosting fees Mvoicad in advincs i k) _An7Tra

g1r71 SH5 724
11. Revenus

Revenue fram contracts with customers
Grants recaived 3,351,114 2,769,185
Membership fees 577.500 526,250

3,928,814 3,295,416

12. Other sperating gaing [losses)

Foreign exchange gains (losses)
Met fareign excnange (losses) gains {167 B35} 131,487

13. Operating profit (loss)
Oparating profit (loss] for the year 15 stated afer charging (crediting) the fllowing, amengst others;

Auditor's remuneration - external

Audit fens 21138 20,008
Remuneration, other than fo employees

Consulling and prefessional services 25078 3z in
Employes costs

Employes costs 1,098 481 S66E, 266
Leasoes

Oparating lease charges

Premisas a7 &n 108,388

Dapreciation and amortisation

Dapreciation of property, plamt and equipment 24 654 25 387
Amorisatan of intangible assets 1260 1400
Tatal depreciation and amortisation 2E,254 26,787
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Figuras in US Dollar 20749 2018

14, Dwpreciation, amortization and impalirment losses

Depragiation

Prapady, plant and squiprmant 24 9G4 25,347

Amariigation

intangibls assels 1,280 1,400

Toml depreclation, amartisation and impairment

Dispraciation 24,964 25,387

Amadisation 1,280 1,400

26,254 28,787

i5. Invaziment incomea

Intarest incomae

Investmenta in financial asseis:

Bank and cthar cash £5 320 &0 460

16, Caeh [uged Injfgensrated from operations

Profit bafars 1axcation 297 G657 (304,802}

Adjustmants for;

Depreciation asd amorisation 26 264 26,787

Losses (gains) on foreign exchange 167 635 (131,487}

Irt@rest income [B5.328) (60, 458)

Mevamanls in grevisians 3,406 149,557

Changes |nworking capital:

Trade and other recaivablbes 53614 98,914

Trade and otnar pavables [& &) 170,403

Dafamed income {1,153 141} 1,455,584
(6T6,508) 1,318,407

17. Coammitmants

Oparaling leazes — a5 lesses (expense)

Minlmum lease payments due

- within one year B 982 93,074

- in second to fifth vear inclusive 193 750 -
293 742 93,074

Operating lease paymenis represant rantals payabla by the crganisation for cenain of 18 offiee propemes. Leasas ara
negotiatad for an evarage 1erm of seven years and rertals are fied for an average of three years. No contngent rent is

payable.
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Figures in LIS Deallar

201%

2018

18, HRelated parties

Relationships

Membars of rmanagerment cammities and cther officials

Relatod party transactions

M= NG Cole - Executive Secrelary
M3 M Fatel-Manga - Chief Oparabng Officar

Mz R Subramaney - Financial Manager

Remuneration and tax compansatien paid to members of management and other

officials
Wr NG Cola 149 451 117,397
W5 N PalckManga 118,807 AL
Ms R Subramongy 84,758 Ca, 74T
18, Financial instruments and risk managamaent
Categories of financial instruments
Categories of inancial aseats
2019
Mate(s) Amortised Tatal Falr value
coEt
Trade and othas recaivaties b GT5823 B75 821 GTh 460
{:ash ano cash eguivalants B 3,576,780 3515 Fed 3518180
4,186,713 4,185 713 4,185,283
2018
Mote(s) Amortised Total Fair valua
codt
Trade and ciher recerabies ] Ti0,542 T30 542 TIT.529
Cash and cash equivalents B 4 2BE.B1S 4, 288 515 -
5,018,167 5,018,167 7528
Calegoriee of financel labilitiss
2019
Holels) Amaortised Total Fair value
coat
Trada and cther payablas ¥ 250,608 250,505
2018
Hote(s] Amortised Tatal Falr value
coEt
Trade and Slher payables 7 257 308 257 308 =
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19, Financigl instruments and risk management (continusd]
Capital fisk managament

The srgansation’s ohectves when managing capital are to safeguard the organisation’s aodity o continue as & goung CONCaN
in oioer to provide benafits for other stakeholders and 1o maintain an optimal capital structure.

Tha casdal ftructure of he argansatisn conslats of debt. which includes the borrewirgs, cash and cash equivalents disciosed
in nabe &, and aguity as disclosed in the stetement of financial position.

Ins ordar w0 maintain or adjust the capital struciune, the organization may reduca the amown] of operating costs and obtain
additional furging. The funding strategy of the organisation i to apgroach doncrs and cbiain funding bafore the sian of each
threa wearly strawegic plan,

Thare are no exdernally mposed capital requirements,

Thiare hawve been no changes lo whal the grgansation managas &5 capilal, the strategy for Cagital maintenancs of axtermalhy
impased cagilal requiremenits from the pravious yeer,

The difference of 85% in the gearing ratio is due 1o the decreass in cash and cash equivalants. The decrease in the cash and
cash equivalants is dua 1o funding that ended on 31 March 2015,

frade and other payables 7 250.609 25T 307
Cash and cash equivalents & (3.518.750) [4,288.615)
Hat borrowings (3,269,181}  (4,031,307)
Equity 1.7868.202 1480623
Gaearing ratio (183)% {270)%

41
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18, Financlal instruments and risk managamant (continuwed)
Financizl risk managamant

The Hgansanon’s activiles expose it o a vanety of financial naks: market nsk (incheding curmancy risk eic.), credit risk and
ligquicity nak.

The organisation’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictabiity of inancial mankets and seeks 1o minimise
potential adverss effects an the argansation's financial parformance. Risk managament is carried oul by a cantral financial
depanment uncer policies approved by the Management Committes. Crganisation’s Snancial deparment, ientfy and evaluate
financial fisks in close co-operation with the crganisation's oparating wnits, The Managemen! Committes provides writhen
principies for everall risk managemant, as wall as writlon policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit
risk ard inveestrent of axcess liquidity

Credit rigk

Credit nsk corsists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalanis and trade cebtors, The drganisation anly deposits cash wilh
majar bancs with nign qualty cradit standing and limils expasure to Bny one counter-party,

Liguidity risk

Prudent liguidity risk managemant knplies maintaining sufficiant cash and marketable securities. the availablity of funding
thraugh an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and Ihe ability to close oul market positions. Due to the dyamic
nature of the urcerdying businesses, organisation treasury maintains fiexibility in funding by maintaining availability weder
commitbad credit linas.

The orgarssation's risk to housity 5 a resull of the funds available to cover futre commitmenis, The company manages
liguicity nigk thigegh an ongoing review of fulure commetmants and credit facities.

The iatle celow aralyses the organization’s financial labilites intd relavant matunly groupings basad on the remaining pencd
al the ststemant of inancial positan o e contractual maturity date, The amounts discloesd in the table are the cantractual
undiscounied cash flows. Balances due withn 12 months equal ther carrpng balances &s the mpact of discounting is not
agnitcant.

019
Carrying
amaunt
Current Habilities
Trade and ofher payables 250,800
2018
Carrying
amount
Current Habliltes
Trade and cihar payables [ 257.308

Faraign currancy risk

The ergarcsation cperates intematicnally and = exposed 1o foreign exchange risk ansing [Fom vanous CuMmancy EXpOsUNes,
primarihy wih raspect 10 tha LS doltar (USD), Swiss Frank (CHF) and Great Bmain Pound (GEP]. Foraign exchange risk arises
freem Tuture commercial ransactions, recopnised assets and Rabilites.

The company does not hedga foreign exchange fuctuations.
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18, Finansial instruments and rigk management (cantinued)
Exchange rates s5ed for canversion af foraign items were.

South Afican Rand 14,5868

Graat Britain Pound 0. 7683

Sorrss Frank 05560

Ewra 08507

The erganisation ravews its foresign currency exXposUre on an ongoing basis

Forelgn currency exposure at the end of the reporting peried

Gurrent assets - $1/ ZAR

Cash and cash equivalents 10,214,320 S870.054
Track and ofher payablas G38.827  1.134.284
Currant aseats - 51/ GEP

Cash and cash aguivabants i 40 275D

Currant azzats - §$1/ CHF
Cash end cash equivalents 56,849 408 B33

Current assets - $1/ Eure
Trace and sther payasios T 43 538 4116

Inimrast raw rigk

As the organisation has no significant injerest-baaring assats, the company's incorm and oparating cash flows are
subgantially independent of changas in marke! intamst rales.

Prica rak

The erganisation i nat ovarly exgosad 1o prica risk and manages s exposure through intarnal contrgl processes.

20, Fair value infermation

The estimaled fair values as at 31 Mareh 2078 Rave bean delermined wsing available markel information and apprograbe
valuation mathodologies, but a0 not necessanly incicative of amouwnts that the organisation could realise in the nomal course
of business, The fair value of almost all inancal instrumants equals shair carrying value, ather becauss of the shon-term

natue and normal race berms thareol ar the market-related interest rates attached o i All financial instrements ang
categorised at a level in ihe fair value Merarchy.

21, Ewents after the reporting pariod
I the 2017118 Annual Financial Statements, under contingent liabllites, the amounts of 1 month's salary $8346.05 (R75,000)

and 523278 83 (R275.000) for tax compensation were reflecied lor a itigaticn between J Stoft and CABRI. Subsequently on 10
May 20149 the COMA dismissed the case.

. Traxatian

Mo prewision nas been made for taxation as the erganisation (s axampt from incoma taxation in accordance with Section 5(3) of
ihe Diplomatic Immunities and Privileges Act, 2007 and Aricle 5(2) of the Agreoment,
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Arnual Financial Statemanis for the year endied 21 March 2018

Detailed Income Statement

Figures in US Dodlar Mibe!s) 2015 2018
Revenue
Granis recaivad 3,351,114 2,769,165
Mambarshp fese 577800 526,250
11 3,928,614 3,298,418
Other aperating gaine (losses)
Forgign exchange (103585) Qains (157 635) 131,487
Other aparating exponses
Adgverising (3T 404) (B, 156)
Amortisation {1.290) [1.400)
Assat pxpenditue (620) -
Auditors remuneration 13 (21,138) (20,008)
Compuler axpanses (18.B65) (17,914)
GConsulting and professional loes (12,674) (28,968)
Consuiting and prolessional leas - lagal fees (124044 (3,143}
Conguning fees - Techmeal (358,881) {472 5847
Depreciation (24 064) (25,397}
Edilorial sarvicas (9,193) 131,077)
Employes cosls (1,099,481} {965, 288)
Enl@vtanemen 155, 068) (33.972)
Flights (431, 727) {493,550)
Gengral expenses (27.554) (27,200)
Ground transport (34, 785) (28,400)
IT expensas (7.004) (10,836)
Lease sentas on pperating lesse (ET.2T) {108, 388)
Muricigal expanses (18.480) {17,058
Partnership ggresment (321,081) {281,708}
Poslags (1.847) 1191
Frinting ana stationeny (7. 5BE) (1.556)
Prervissan for bad dabls mevements 28,820 {438, 3500
Publicatens (65,805) {23,084)
Relocation costs {30,073) {15,250)
Security {361) 1113y
Tabaphone and fax 25,8800 (18.010)
Translztion (85,501) (63.553)
Travel - lncal {5, 1156) (3.682)
Vienue and conference costs (764,726) {630,607T)
(3,528,851) (3,792,271}
Oparzting prafit [loss) 13 242,328 {355,371)
Ireestment income 15 55,328 50,468
Profit {less) for the year 297 B5T {304,902)

£

The supplementary information presanted dees not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited
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Southdowns Ridge Office Park
Cnr John Vorster & Nellmapius Drive
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South Africa

Telephone: +27 (0)12 492 0022
General information: info@cabri-sbo.org
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